A CORRELATION OF THE TYPES OF SKIN REACTIONS WITH SPECIES OF STREPTOCOCCUS ISOLATED FROM ALLERGIC INDIVIDUALS

BT

John Uchiyama

A THESIS

Presented to the Department of Bacteriology and the Graduate Division of the University of Oregon Medical School in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Arts

June 1941

APPROVED:

(Adviser for the Inesis)

(sor the committee)

may 15, 1941

PREFACE

This paper is devoted to the classification and identification of streptococci isolated from allergic individuals and furthermore, to correlate different types of skin reactions with the species of streptococci.

This work would not have been possible without the kind and sincere guidance and counsel of Dr. H. J. Sears, under whom I had the pleasure and privilege of working. I am also indebted to Dr. Sears for learned criticism and correction of this paper;; to Euclile Hellmer for her very kind and careful proof reading; and to the cooperative staff of the Allergy Clinic for specimens.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Preface

Part I

I.	Introduction to Allergy and Anaphylaxis	1
II.	Bacterial Hypersensitiveness	16
III.	Streptococcus in Allergy	28
	Part II	
	Experimental	
I.	Object of the Experimental Work.	37
II.	Procedures	38
III.	Methods and Techniques	48
IV.	Classification of the Streptococcus	67
V.	Skin Tests.	70
VI.	A Correlation of Experimental Results	73
	The different types of reactions to the	
	vaccine and filtrates	73
	A correlation of species of pyogenic	
	group with various types of skin reaction	75
	A correlation of the species of Viridans	
	Streptococcus with skin reactions	76
	A correlation of the species of entero-	
	coccus with the types of skin reactions	77
	A correlation of the groups of streptococcus	
	with the skin reactions.	78
	A correlation of high so sinophile counts and	
	the types of skin reactions	79
VII.	Discussion	81
III.	Sumary	84
IX.	Bibliography	86

I. INTRODUCTION TO ALLERGY AND ANAPHYLAXIS

Allergy (ergia, "reactivity" and allos, "altered") is a term introduced by Von Pirquet, which Doerr adopted to signify any degree of specifically altered reactivity increased or decreased from the usual conditions, and depending upon the antigen-antibody reactions or upon the effects of entirely nonantigenic substances, such as hypersusceptibility to light and drugs. Allergy is usually spoken of as a condition unusual or exaggerated specific susceptibility to a substance which is harmless in equal amounts for the majority of the members of the same species. The term allergy is now used in a rather irregular and loose way. The present tendency is to classify allergy under a more general term, hypersensitiveness, which in the technical sense means an increased specific reaction capacity in an individual, man or animal, to a substance which in a normal individual of the same species, produces little or no reaction. It is evident that the manifestations of hypersensitiveness are varied and include such widely separated phenomena as the protein hypersensitiveness of animals, spoken of as anaphylaxis, and the allergies of man as hayfever, food, bacterial, and drug idiosyncrasies. Technically, all phenomena of specific hypersensitiveness are thought to be essentially immunologic in nature; thus it may be said that any classification of this nature is purely one of convenience for discussion. For seemingly all specific hypersensitiveness is the result of an appearance in the sensitized body of

a specific reaction product, a true antibody or its analogue, which, first, is incited by the contact of the cells with incitant and, secondly, in the mechanism of manifestation, mediates between the incitant and the cells, rendering them more than normally sensitive or capable of abnormal reaction.

Even at present these statements can be made only with reservation for in certain types of hypersensitiveness the mechanism is not well understood. There is one type of hypersensitiveness in which an antibody mechanism has been plainly demonstrated by another type in which, while remaining of specifically increased reaction capacity for an antigenic substance or for partial antigens, occurs without any definite evidence of the presence of the circulating antibodies. The statement has been made that basically, the mechanism of hypersensitiveness in man and animal may be due to the same immunological mechanism. The correlation of the human hypersensitiveness with the protein anaphylaxis in animals is obscured by the difficulty of determining the observed discrepancies. Whether the observed discrepancies were due to the fundamental differences of the mechanism or whether they are dependent upon the species' peculiarities of the anatomical structures or the physiological functions, is not yet certain.

Observations show that the conditions governing sensitization and the nature of response vary considerably with the individual animal species. In human forms of hypersensitiveness, many are incited by true protein antigens; it seems apparent that the basic mechanism is one analogous to protein anaphylaxis of animals. Whether the evidence of human hypersensitiveness and the animal hypersensitiveness of anaphylaxis may be attributed to the manifestations of basically the same mechanism; it remains to be seen. The quantitative experiments, as conducted in lower animals, have not been extensively performed in human beings, which may account for the lack of extensive experimental evidences correlating human hypersensitiveness with protein anaphlaxis or animal hypersensitiveness.

In early experimental work with the animals, Vells (1921) laid down certain criteria which must be met in a condition to be regarded as a true anaphylaxis. It is well to review these criteria for as the experimental evidences are discovered in human hypersensitiveness; they seem to be closely related to animal anaphylaxis, if not the same manifestation of the basic mechanism. The criteria are as follows:

- "(1) The observed toxicity of the injected material must depend upon the sensitization of the animal, i.e., the substance must not produce similar symptoms in non-sensitized animals.
- (2) The symptoms produced must be those characteristic of anaphylactic intexication as observed in the usual reactions with typical solumble proteins, being, therefore, the same for all antigens with the same test animals, but differing characteristically with each species of animals.

- (3) It should be possible to demonstrate typical reactions in the non-striated suscle tissue of the sensitized animals.
- (4) The possibility that the observed symptoms are caused by capillary thrombosis or embolism must be excluded.
- (5) After the recovery from anaphylactic shock there should be exhibited a condition of specific desensitization to the same antigen under the proper conditions.
- (6) In addition to the above, but not always, possible (a) to demonstrate passive sensitization with the serum of sensitized animals; and (b) to demonstrate amelioration or prevention of the bronchial spasm in guinea pigs by proper use of atropine and sphedrine.

It would be inadequate at present to base conclusions on criteria, for seemingly new experimental evidences are found which would necessitate broader interpretation or accepting those criteria as supplementary facts. It remains to be seen in the light of the future experiments whether human hypersensitiveness and the protein anaphylaxis of the lower animals are the same manifestations of the basic mechanism as presently thought.

The protein hypersensitiveness or anaphylaxis in animals has been thought as the reaction of an antigen with the tissue cells which have become sensitized from active treatment with antigen or serum containing specific antibodies. Whether an active or passive sensitization, it is thought that the reacting cells are associated with or contain specific antibodies which render them capable of abnormally rapid and excessive reaction with the

antigen when it reacts with the antibody in or upon the cell surface; consequently there is an injury of cells, an interference with the normal function, and perhaps causing an irritation, which are recognised by sudden or protracted anaphylactic shock.

With apparent similarity of the basic mechanism, no two species of animals display the same type of symptoms of hypersensitiveness.

The salient features differentiating the two conditions are the following: The exciting agent in anaphylaxis is always an antigenic substance; the exciting agent in human hypersensitiveness is often non-antigenic. Anaphylactic hypersensitiveness is induced by the injection of a sensitizing dose of antigen; hypersensitiveness in man often exhibited upon first contact with the exciting agent. The anaphylactic state, apart from congenital passive anaphylaxis, is not an inheritable condition; natural human hypersensitiveness shows a definite tendency to run in families, though the hypersensitiveness is often exhibited toward different substances in parents and offspring. Specific desensitization is far more easily demonstrated in anaphylaxis than in hypersensitiveness.

Acute anaphylaxis, natural hypersensitiveness, the allergic response, and specific antibacterial immunity appear to depend upon the fundamental mechanism, the union of the antigen with its specific antibody. The differences between them depend on the nature of the antigen concerned, the nature of the animal into whose tissue it penetrates, the rate and the route of penetration, the distribution of the antibody in the animal's tissue, and the body fluids, the secondary effects of the primary cellular reactions, and a variety of other factors.

appropriate, a review will not be presented in the customary form. Since the subject of hypersensitiveness has been reviewed theroughly by many workers, only attempts will be made to review briefly, in chronological order, that particular phase of the subject which seems to be most pertinent to the systematic development of the knowledge of hypersensitiveness. The chronological tabulation contains the essence of the stepping-stone experiments and the important conclusions, the only necessary observations which has directly advanced the theories of hypersensitiveness.

REVIEW OF OUR KNOWLEDGE OF HYPERSENSITIVITY CHROMOLOGICALLY ARRANGED

Date	Mature of experiment and observation.	Significance and conclusion.	
1565	Betallus states that smel- ling roses caused smeesing, and itching of nose.	Refraining from the use and contact of them pre- vented the symptoms.	
1577	Von Helmont gives a de- scription of seasonal as- thma in a man and his mother.	He attaches no other sig- nificance than the detailed description.	
1662	Schneider observed a pe- culiar reaction to rose pol- len and wrote a detailed article on rose catarrh.	Made no conclusions con- cerning the nature of the reaction.	
1673	Benningerus also made an observation on rose catarrh.	His article offered no essential explanation for the reaction.	
1798	Jenner noticed an unusual reaction in second vaccination with small-pox vaccine material.	Explanation for the un- usual reaction is not given.	
1839	Magendie found that dogs which had been sensitized with egg albumin, upon reinjection died of shock.	Dogs repeatedly injected with egg albumin often died suddenly; he also gave a description of the symptoms.	
1856	Blackley observed the re- action that he received from pollens and also observed the reaction on his patients; he reproduced typical symptems on himself by application of pollens and pollen solutions to the mucous membranes of nose, eyes, and mouth. He also performed skin tests by applying small amounts of pollen on scarified area on the skin.	Statement is made that hayfever is caused exclus- ively by pollens; that symptoms of hayfever varied with the pollen content of the air.	

1891

Koch observed that when a tuberculous patient had received tuberculin; he reacted in an unusual way which was characteristic.

1894

Plexner states that rabbits which withstood one dose of dog serum would succumb to a second dose if given after a lapse of some days or weeks, even though the second dose was sublethal for control animals.

1899

Bostock recognised hayfever as being caused by pollem.

1902

Portier and Richet noticed that dogs which had been innoculated with eel serum became sensitive to their action so that second doses too small to be haraful to normal animals caused violent symptoms and death. Richet called this phenomena **anaphylaxis*.

1903

Dunbar confirmed the work of Blackley and isolated the active albuminous substance from the various pollens for treatment of patients.

1903

Arthus and Breton found that repeated subcutameous injections of horse serum in rabbits at intervals of several days gave rise to edema, sterile abscesses and gangrene at the site of innoculation.

1904

Theobald Smith in standardising the diphtheria antitoxin by the use of guinea pigs observed hypersensitiveness to second injection of antitoxin. Attributed the reaction to additional injury to the already injured tissue by the bacterial product (tuberculin).

Flexner made a careful observation, but gave no explanation for the mechanism.

Thought hayfever was caused by pollens and heat and sun's ray.

The reaction was attributed to manifestation of the animal to become without "protection".

Thought also that hayfever was caused by pollens in the air.

Suggested that the condition was analogous to the experiments of Richet.

He made no conclusions.

1905

Otto made the first systematic study of anaphylaxis; found that an interval of 10 days elapsed after the sensitizing dose before hypersensitiveness was established; and that no hypersensitiveness resulted when large injections of serum were given at short intervals.

1906

Von Pirquet and Schick observed the first case of serum sickness due to second injection of diptheria toxin-antitexin.

1906

Masserman and Bruck made the first suggestion of the immunological mechanism of the tuberculin reaction.

1906

Wdff-Eisner observed series of hayfever cases and attributed the symptoms to the pollens.

1906

1907

Rosenau and Anderson were the first to establish the specific nature of the anaphylactic reaction.

- Guinea-pigs sensitized with horse serum showed no reaction to serum of other animals.
- 2. Single dose of horse serum which was harmless to normal guineapigs made the sensitised animal very reactive to second dose after an interval of 10 days.
- 3. The sensitizing dose was extremely small.
- 4. The hypersensitiveness

Attributed the toxicity of the second innoculation to the effect of the serum itself.

They attempted no explanation of the reaction theoretically.

Attributed the reaction to harmful union of bacterial antigens and ambioceptors attached to the infected tissues.

Concluded that masal pathology which occurred seasonally was due to hayfever caused by the pollens.

They concluded that "the fact that other animals besides man and the guineapigs react to a second injection of horse serum would seem to indicate that we are dealing with one and the same action". "It is probable that man may be rendered sensitive to the injection of a strange proteid. "."

was lasting and also could be transmitted from mother to the offspring.

5. Found that sensitivity could be induced by the extracts of bacteria and believed that this may have a possible relationship to anaphylaxis and infectious diseases.

Otto made the first contribution toward the knowledge of desensitization. He found that animals recoverying from anaphylactic shock are desensitized for varying lengths of time.

Besredka and Steinhardt made a more detailed study of the mechanism of desensitization. They found that sublethal deses of horse serum not only desensitized a sensitive animal but within a short time a high degree of tolerance was conferred; as much as one hundred to one thousand times the lethal dose.

Nicolle published the earliest account of the passive transfer of the hypersensitive condition. He noticed that if a highly immunized rabbit's serum was injected into a normal rabbit, the injection of the original sensitizing serum rendered the rabbit reactive.

Gay and Southard are the first workers to support the

He concluded that instead of death in properly desensitized animals after sufficient doses of antigen were given there was a period of condition in which ordinary doses could be tolerated.

They concluded that desensitisation can be produced by the injection of sublethal doses of serum instead of production of a severe anaphylaxis.

Micolle concluded that the serum of the sensitized must contain a substance capable of responding to the horse serum.

Their idea was based on the fact that the sensi-

1907

1907

1907

1907

antigen-antibody theory of the anaphylactic reaction.

1908

Micolle and Abt attempted to disprove the work of Gay and Southard by using horse serum sensitized guinea-pigs.

190g-9

Victor Vaughan observed the so-called toxic and nontoxic fractions of tubercle colon, proteus, and other bacilli to study the reactivity upon injection into normal and infected guineapigs; also they observed hypersensitiveness of a person infected with micro-organisms to protein extracts of the infecting organisms.

1909

Friedberger presented one of the earliest theories of the cellular cite of the anaphylactic reaction.

1909

Doerr and Russ using the serum of various animals made the greatest contribution toward the knowledge of passive transfer of sensitive ness.

Hypersensitiveness to a given antigen can be pas-

tizing fraction could be separated from the toxic fraction of the original antigen by associum sulfate precipitation.

They concluded that ensymes may be the cause of the anaphylactic mechanism instead of exotoxins or endotoxins.

They determined the presence of antibodies in sensitized animals by compliment-fixation. Proved that sensitizing and toxogenic powers could not be separated.

Attributed the reaction to liberation of nonspecific poison by the parental digestion of proteins by specific enzymes developed under the conditions of the infecting organisms.

Thought that a precipitation reaction upon the surface of the tissue cells. loaded with receptors in the sense of Ehrlich represented the true mechanism of shock.

Concluded that "the meeting of antigen and antibody in the blood stream alone could not account for the condition of hypersensitiveness. sively transferred not only by the serum of an actively sensitized animal but also by the serum of an animal in a state of desensitization or an anaphylaxis and even by the serum of an animal born congenitally sensitive.

1909

Doerr shed the first probable explanation of drug idiesyncrasies; he found that addition of iodine or mitro group changed the specificity of the antigen.

1910

Manyaring reenforced the theory of cellular site of reaction by exampuinating a dog sensitized to horse serum and re-infused him with blood of a normal dog until there had been an almost complete replacement of blood; yet the dog remained sensitive.

1910

Schultz contributed the incontrovertible proof of the cellular theory; he found that an isolated intestinal muscle of a sensitised guinea-pig in presence of a specific antigen would show contraction characteristic of anaphylactic reaction.

1910

Auer and Lewis published the first adequate account of physiclogical reaction that led to the death of an animal. They found that on post-morten examination of guinea-pigs they died of anaphylactic shock distension of the lungs, due to the constriction of the bronchioles, which retained the air in the alveeli. Death was due to suffication.

Thought that the experiment helped to explain the specific nature of the anaphylactic reaction.

"That the site of anaphylactic reaction does not take place wholly in the blood stream".

He concluded that since there was no blood in the isolated smooth muscle then the reaction must take place in the cells.

The death of the guinespig was due to asphyxiation. 1916

Dale and Hartley confirmed the work of Rosenau and Anderson by using the englobulin and albumin fraction of the horse serum: found that each fraction but not to pseudoglobulin. sensitized separately.

1920

Coca was the first to make a thorough investigation on hypersensitiveness which he called "atopy". He contributed the differential characteristics between anaphylaxis in animals and hypersensitiveness in man.

1921

Prausnitz and Kustner record the first experimental study of passive sensitization in man.

Kustner was sensitive to fish and found that his serum did not contain precipitation nor could they demonstrate passive sensitisation of guinea-pig, but if small amount of his serum was injected into a normal person followed by in-

"The sensitization seems to be rigidly specific as when euglobulin produces sensitization to euglobulin,

He concluded that the following were the differential characteristics:

- 1. Exciting agent in anaphylactic shock is always an antigenic substance; while the exciting agent in human hypersensitiveness is often non-antigenic.
- 2. Anaphylaxis is induced by injection of an antigen; hypersensitiveness is often exhibited woom contact with the exciting agent.
- 3. Anaphylactic state is not inheritable: while human sensitiveness tends to run in families.
- Specific desensitiestion is more easily domonstrated in anaphylexis than in human hypersensitiveness.

Apparently the idiosyncratic serum contained something analogous to an antibody but probably not identical in every sense. "

jection of extra there was a marked reaction at the site of injection.

1921

Wells established a group of criteria for anaphylactic reaction.

- The criteria are as follows:

 1. *The observed toxicity
 of the injected material must
 depend upon the sensitization of the animal, i.e.,
 the substance must not produce similar symptoms in
 non-sensitized animals.
- 2. The symptoms produced must be those characteristic of anaphylactic intoxication as observed in the usual reactions with typical soluble proteins, but differing characteristically for each species of animals.
- It should be possible to demonstrate typical reactions in the nonstriated muscle tissue of the sensitized animal.
- 4. The possibility that the observed symptoms are caused by capillary thrombosis must be excluded.
- 5. After the recovery from anaphylactic shock there should be exhibited a condition of specific desensitisation to the same antigen under the proper conditions.
- 6. In addition to the above, it is usually, but not always possible (a) to show passive sensitisation with the serum of the sensitized animal; (b) to show amelioration or prevention of the bronchial spasm in guineapigs by proper use of atropine and ephedrine.

1927

Best, Dudley, Dale, and Thorpe studied the effect of histamin on organs of the guinea-pig and attributed the shock to histamim; found that toxic syndrome produced by histamine reproduced very faithfully several of the characteristic features of acute anaphylaxis.

A sudden release of histamine in the circulation of an animal would have profound shock-like action.

1929

Avery and Tillett gave early account of bacterial haptens in anaphylaxis. They found that pneumococcal polysaccharide will not induce an active sensitization in guinea-pigs, but will induce an acute anaphylactic in animals passively sensitized by the injection of precipitating antisera prepared in the rabbit.

Concluded that the hapten fraction combined with the antibody produced in the rabbit previously and gave the reaction of anaphylaxis.

II. BACTERIAL HYPERSENSITIVENESS

As bacterial hypersensitiveness was studied in more detail, it became apparent that the mechanisms governing the anaphylactic reactions did not explain the tuberculin reaction, either
in its systemic or in its local manifestations. It became clear
that there were probably two distinct types of bacterial hypersensitiveness, one corresponding with considerable accuracy to protein anaphylaxis, the other, typified by reactions similar to
tuberculin hypersusceptibility, which seems in many respects to
differ from the anaphylactic phenomena. At present bacterial hypersensitiveness is discussed under two distinct headings: bacterial anaphylaxis and bacterial allergy.

Zinsser, 1921, found that the two types of hypersensitiveness, that is, typical anaphylaxis to tuberculous proteins and
the characteristic tuberculin allergy could exist in guines-pigs
independent of each other or could be separately present in the
same animal at different times. Guines-pigs suffering from tuberculosis would give a marked skin reaction to 0. T. 1 - 10
within ten days after innoculation without developing hypersensitiveness; while symptoms of anaphylaxis develop five to
six weeks after the infection and sometimes does not develop at
all. This important observation led to an attempt to separate
in the tubercle bacillus the individual antigenic fractions responsible for each reaction, an effort which resulted in the dif-

ferentiation between nucleo-protein and a substance that Zinsser (1921) called the "residue antigen". Since antibedies could not be produced with these materials and yet they united with antibodies, a suggestion was made that they represented partial antigens or haptenes. A true anaphylaxis can be produced with tubercle bacillus material as with the antigenic substances of other bacteria, but animals so sensitized may not show any signs of that form of hypersensitiveness which is spoken of as allergy.

Bacterial anaphylaxis seems to be analogous in every respect to protein anaphylaxis, fulfilling all the criteria of Wells (1921). Sensitisation takes place by antibody response to the whole or complete antigen in which nucleoprotein and carbohydrate fractions are combined. When such antibodies are sessile upon the cells, shock can be elicited in vivo and upon the isolated uterus with the specific carbohydrate substance alone.

Bacterial allergy is another form of hypersensitiveness which is not limited to the tuberculin reaction, but occurs in glanders and abortus infections. Allergy to bacteria may be described as a state of specific hypersensitivity to these microorganisms and their products which may be induced experimentally in animals and human beings or which occur spontaneously during the course of disease. During or after most infections an altered reactivity towards the products of the causitive agent of a disease may occur.

Koch (1591) contributed a basic observation leading to the recognition of bacterial allergy. Normal guinea-pigs may be injected with tuberculin in considerable amounts without causing noticeable symptoms. Tuberculous guinea-pigs react to comparatively small doses in a very characteristic manner. The fundamental characteristic in other tests of this nature seems to be the appearance of local and systemic reactions in infected subjects to contact with specific antigenic material which, in the same quantities, produce no effects in normal individuals. The likeness with the phenomena of anaphylaxis is thus indicated. The passive transfer which is characteristic of anaphylaxis has not been so far possible in tuberculin type of hypersensitiveness.

Zinsser (1921), in attempting to sensitize guinea-pigs with the nucleo-protein fraction of tubercle bacillus found tuberculin-like skin reactivity developed upon the use of unfiltered nucleo-protein. This observation led to further investigations. Tuberculin reactivity was demonstrated with dead tubercle bacilli as well as living, provided a tubercle had been formed. The filtered material did not produce allergy. This fact is important in demonstrating that the tuberculin reaction is not an infection reaction, possibly dependent upon the liberation from the living organisms of toxin or other products of secretion, but depende upon the formation of inflammatory tissue reaction.

These views were strengthened by subsequent studies on streptococcus and pneumococcus allergies. As a consequence the

allergic mechanism has been considered as a possible factor in the pathology of a number of important diseases of man.

Consideration of these few stated facts indicates that bacterial allergy is a specific hypersensitiveness to antigenic materials of the nucleo-protein type, which are discharged into the body from the bacterial foci where they are liberated by the action of the inflammatory tissue.

The role of bacteria in allergy had not been seriously considered until recently when certain conditions as asthma, rhinitis, migraine, urticaria, and angio-neurotic edema and other allergic conditions could not be explained on the basis of the reactions to ordinary food and inhalants. Walker and Adkinson (1919) and Hodge and Cohen (1921) reported finding predominence of certain types of streptococcus. Thomas, Famulener, and Towart (1923) confirmed the earlier results. The evidence strongly indicated that the causes of most of these allergic manifestations must be sought in the infectious processes within the body. Carmalt-Jones (1909) treated asthmatic patient with autogenous vaccine, first of the known records in literature. He resorted to autogenous vaccine treatment when he could not find the patient sensitive to the ordinary foods and inhalants. It is now generally accepted that the bacteria plays a certain role in allergic conditions where sensitization to food, inhalants, and contactants have not been found to be the responsible factor. Roger

(1921) and Vallery-Radot, Blamoutier, and Nitti (1936) found in allergic patients predominence of virilous streptococcus. The matter of disagreement concerns the question of specificity or non-specificity in the bacterial cases.

In bronchial asthma, it can be quite possible that the bacterial infection may by its presence in the bronchial tree, cause certain pathological changes to take place. The pathologically changed areas subsequently induce abnormal function of the organ which may be responsible for the observed symptoms in the asthmatics. In accordance with this, many authorities maintain that vaccine treatment is nothing more than foreign protein shock therapy (Rosendaal and Maytum, 1936; Feinberg, 1934; and Wilmer and Cobe, 1932). It is possible that any one or more of these non-specific chemical factors may be responsible for the relief in non-specific protein treatment. The pioneer research of V. C. Vaughan (1902) has indicated that any bacteria, including relatively avirulent B. Goli group, have inherent toxicity for the animal organism.

The opponents of non-specificity of bacterial allergy contend that specificity is demonstratable and that favorable relief depends upon specific reaction. This is characterized by those bacterial actions which are definitely sensitization phenomena.

At once when such a question arises, several difficulties

confront us. The supposed discrepancy between human allergy and animal enaphylaxis, owing to the frequent failure to obtain passive sensitization of animals by injection of allergic sera. But in spite of the known discrepancy, the majority of the investigators are inclined to agree with Zinsser (1928) that the basic principles of hypersensitiveness should not be neglected in favor of discrepancies which reveal lack of experimental knowledge, rather than fundamental differences of the principle. The fact that bacterial antigens and antibodies are extremely complex as compared with those of the simpler coagulable proteins, presents another formidable obstacle in the general agreement of the mechanism.

produced with the same case and certainty, as in the case of horse serum or egg-white. A single injection of bacteria or bacterial extract frequently fails to produce any demonstratable sensitization, and the most successful results have been obtained by those workers who have employed repeated small injections of antigen for sensitization, followed by an interval of three weeks or so. "
Topley and Wilson.

Bacterial anaphylaxis has been accepted and thoroughly established as a scientific fact. Rosenau and Anderson (1907) were able to induce active and passive sensitization with becterial antigen. Einseer and Parker (1917) established the bacterial anaphylaxis as a scientific fact by the Dale's - Schultz technic with the isolated uterus. The reactions were demonstrated to be specific and desensitization can be brought about by the use of specific antigen.

The bacterial hypersensitiveness or bacterial allergy which concerns us in asthma and other allergic conditions is essentially different from the anaphylactic phenomena. Zinsser and Tamiya (1926) state that in the cases of bacterial hypersensitiveness that two protein anaphylaxis plays a relatively unimportant role and that the true mechanism is not well understood. The mcterial allergies or bacterial hypersensitiveness are of great importance since they develop rapidly and render the infected animal highly vulnerable to the products of bacterial growth, which are relatively innocuous for normal animals. They also believe that allergy is in no way related to that phase of resistence which is determined by the antibodies. Zinsser and Grinnell (1925), working with hemolytic streptococcus announced that there seems to be certain points of close analogy between streptococcus allergy and the tuberculin reaction. This observation is particularly important in that they believe all bacterial allergies are based on identical fundamental phenomena. To bring the tuberculin analogy closer, it was found that Dick filtrate, which corresponds in manner of production to an unconcentrated "Old tuberculin" without glycerine, is most potent material for demonstrating allergic state of skin reaction.

The bacterial allergy is usually dependent upon the presence of whole bacteria in the host and appears to be related to the nucleo-protein - carbohydrate combination of Avery, Zinsser, et al. This nucleo-protein and S.S.S. fraction suggests the probability of a multiplicity of specific soluble products of bacteria.

A brief analysis of the role of bacteria in allergic conditions is difficult to achieve chiefly due to the complexity of the bacterial effects in the human organism. These include not only the foreign protein factor, but the apparently more significant specific nucleo-protein - carbohydrate antigens, and are an entirely different hemolytic streptococcus factor of Sabins (1931) and Enders (1930), a true toxin which is heat resistant, but which incites a specific antitoxin. Any of these components of the bacteria may be present in various amounts; also they may be concerned with the allergic reactions of asthma, angioneurotic edema, rhinitis, and other allergic conditions.

These developments in bacterial allergy have been reviewed thoroughly by many workers. A brief review has been made chronologically to show the development of the knowledge of bacterial allergy and its possible significance to human disease. From these reviews it seems very probable that bacterial allergy has an important role in human disease.

CHROMOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENT OF BACTERIAL ALLERGY

Koch showed that O.T. (old tuberculin) may be injected into a normal guinea pig in large amounts without causing noticeable effect, whereas a tuberculous guinea-pig reacted to a comparatively small dose.	A basic observation leading to recognition of bacterial allergy. Koch's conclusion: That tuberculin contains a substance responsible for the necrotising action, which was particularly powerful upon tissues saturated with toxic substance.
	Tank a man hammada a
Babes and Broca, using tuberculin made similar ob- servation to Koch.	They attributed the sys- temic symptoms to a sudden lighting up of the exist- ing lesions by the tubercu- lin added to that already present.
Wasserman and Bruck first suggested the immunological mechanism of the tuberculin reaction.	Tuberculin reaction was caused by the union of the tuberculin with the sessile receptors upon the diseased tissues.
Von Pirquet, using the tuberculin, introduced skin test and also a term allergy or altered reaction capacity.	He gave no basic theories of the mechanism of altered reaction.
Rosenau and Anderson, using extracts of tubercle, colon, typhoid, and anthrax bacilli observed one of the earliest anaphylactic reactions to bacterial extracts which resembles serum anaphylaxis.	From the result of the ex- periment, suggested that the incubation period for many of the infectious diseases represented the time neces- sary for the development of sensitization.
THE RESIDENCE AND ASSOCIATION OF THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN TWO IS NOT	Vasserman and Bruck first suggested the immunological mechanism of the tuberculin reaction. Von Pirquet, using the tuberculin, introduced skin test and also a term allergy or altered reaction capacity. Rosenau and Anderson, using extracts of tubercle, colon, typhoid, and anthrax bacilli observed one of the earliest anaphylactic reactions to bacterial extracts which resembles

1909

Bail attempted a passive transfer of tuberculin reaction using mash of tuberculous organ; the guineapigs injected with finely divided material intraperitoneally died when they were injected 24 hours later with tuberculin

1910

Baldwin made the first theoretical explanation of the tuberculin reaction.

1913

Weil showed that the horse serum which sensitized cells passively could be detected by the Dale method to be present as a foreign protein in the cells of the sensitized animals.

1921

Zinsser demonstrated that a guinea-pig sensitized with tubercle bacilli a true anaphylactic sensitivity as shown by the isolated uterus, and typical tuberculin reactivity of the skin could be separately present at different times in the same animal or could exist alone in a single animal.

1923

Heidelberger and Avery purified the residue antigen of staphlococcus and other organisms. Concluded that passive transfer cannot be regarded as possessing character or regularity of passive transfer in anaphylaxis.

He showed that the skin sensitivity was produced only when actual infection had taken place; also that there seems to be a discrepancy between the skin sensitivity and general anaphylaxis.

The cells of a given species may be capable of association with the globulin from one foreign species, but not with those of another species.

Concluded that the tubercle bacillus was composed of at least two antigenic fractions which were responsible for the two reactions. Investigations led to differentiation between nucleo-protein and so-called residue antigen.

They found it to be a carbohydrate substance which was type specific and was incapable of antibody formation, but combined with the antibody made by a complete antigen, the nonhydrolized organism. 1923

Singeer and Parker obtained a definite anaphylactic reaction with pneumococcus axtracts and isolated uteri of sensitized guinea-pig by the Dale method. Both active and passive sensitization was successful.

1925

Laidlaw and Dudley demonstrated with tubercle bacilli that the residue antigen which gave the skin reaction could be separated from that which was precipited by the antibacterial serum.

1926

Long produced an active tuberculin reactivity in guinea-pigs by the injection of dead tubercle bacilli.

1927

Sineser and Grinnell, by using pneumococcus autolyent, formulated on the basis of the experimental knowledge the probable mechanism of bacterial allergy. Led to the following conclusion:

- 1. That the so-called residue antigens were probably not protein and since entibodies could not be induced, they must be haptens.
- 2. That in the course of any infection in which becterial foci are formed, there follows the development of a type hypersusceptibility which is distinct from protein anaphylamis, which later were associated with the bacterial nucleo-proteins and which can be determined by intradernal ekin reaction.

Separation of the two substances was thought to be fundamental to the understanding of the bacterial anaphylaxia.

The mechanism opposing the super infection is essentially allergie; and that such allergy is means of attacking the spec-ific invaders.

- The specificity of the tuberculin and similar reactions necessitate the assumption that the stimulating substances must emanate from the bacteris.
- 2. The development of allergy after the injection of dead tubercle

bacilli excludes the participation of a soluble or other substances produced by only the living organisms.

- 3. Allergy develops typically only when the tissue reaction has occurred around the injection, and it would therefore seem that the action of the inflammatory tissues, possibly enzymes, is necessary for the liberation of the sensitizing antigen from the bacteria.
- 4. Nucleo-protein that sensitizes to the tuberculin type of reaction cannot be obtained from the tubercle bacillus; in case of which severe and prolonged treatment is necessary, a fact which would indicate that test tube manifestation destroys the antigenic properties of something which is formed more gently by the action of the inflammatory tissues upon the bacteria.
- 5. With the organisms in which the nucleo-protein fraction can be obtained, without chemical manipulation by autolysis, typical tuberculin-like reaction can be induced by active sensitisation.

III. STREPTOCOCCUS IN ALLERGY.

organism under suspicion in cases of allergy where evidences point toward bacteria as a probable cause. Walker and Adkinson (1919) made a thorough study of the groups of streptococci found in the sputums of bronchial asthmatics. They reported finding a predominence of the hemolytic variety, the alpha and gamma varieties in approximately equal numbers. In studying chronic non-tuberculous respiratory infections, Hodge and Cohen (1921) concluded that the flora of the sputum varied very little in asthmatics. They report that as many as eight to fourteen types of streptococci had been found in a single specimen.

A careful and thorough bacterblogical study of the streptococcus in the sputum by Hooker and Anderson (1926) has revealed the predominence of the alpha type of Brown. It was found
that the alpha type constituted seventy-six per cent, the beta
type nine per cent, and the gamma nine per cent of all the orgamine found in the sputum. These results were confirmed by
Vallery-Radot, Blamoutier, and Hitti (1936). They reported predominence of the Viridens type of streptococcus in asthmatics
and also in the cases of bronchitis. Bray (1937) reviews the
role of bacteria in asthma and states that Wilmer and Cobe (1933),
comparing the incidence of bacteria in 500 asthmatics and 200
nofmal controls, found that asthmatics showed the highest inci-

dence of streptococcus (67 per cent). while the normal control showed a predominence of staphylococcus (84 per cent).

The chief objective of this experimental work was the determination of the species of streptococci isolated from the asthmatics and further to correlate them with positive skin reactions and certain other phenomena exhibited by the patient as high eosinophilia of the blood and sputum. The streptococci were all isolated from sputum, stools, nasopharynx, and skin of allergic individuals in the Allergy Clinic. Almost exclusively the strains were isolated from bronchial asthmatics, but a few were from allergic rhinitis, eczema, and other conditions in which no appreciable sensitization was attributable to foods, inhalants, and contactant. The patients were routinely tested for sensitization to pollens, epidermals, foods, grasses, and other non-bacterial proteins. The cases showing negligible skin reactions to these were suspected of bacterial allergy. Sputum and stool specimens were taken routinely in suspected bacterial allergy cases, but frequently other specimens from the nasopharyan and from skin lesions were also taken for preparation of autogenous vaccines and filtrates to be used in the skin tests and desensitization treatments. The method of vaccine and filtrate preparation is described fully in the section on methods and technique.

The carefully prepared vaccines and filtrates were used in skin tests to determine the therapeutic dose of each preparation. For the skin tests, .02 cc. of the sterile, undiluted preparation

was injected intradermally into the inner aspect of the upper arm.

The skin reactions were read in 15 minutes as immediate reactions and after 24 hours, as delayed reactions. The intensity of the skin reaction was primarly based upon the size of the wheal and the erythema. Wheals not exceeding 1 cm. in size were recorded - or (±) questionable, a 1 cm. wheal was regarded 1 plus (+), a 2cm. wheal 2 plus (++), a 3 cm. wheal 5 plus (+++), a 4 cm. wheal 4 plus (++++). Tests were made with the vaccines and the filtrates made from the three predominent types of streptococci from each specimen.

The size of the reaction to the skin test determined the relative amounts to be used in the desensitization treatment. The size of reaction indicated the degree of sensitization to the bacterial substances. Also, it has been thought that skin reaction to autogenous bacterial substances indicates specificity.

Benson (1932) believes that the immediate reaction of a large wheal and its surrounding erythema is of non-specific origin due to the foreign material in the mediums and purely toxic effect of the bacterial extracts. If this assumption is correct, it offers a possible source of error in reading the skin test reactions. If such readings were made without regard to the possible non-specific reaction, much confusion and misinterpretation could only be expected to follow. Benson further claims that in a great majority of cases, the medium produces an immediate intradermal reaction entirely

comparable to that with the corresponding whole vaccine. The exceptions to the previous statement that immediate reactions are non-specific reactions, are cited by Benson. He found that autogenous bacterial vaccines of viridans streptococcus prepared from the stool cultures gave immediate reactions with crythema and wheal on the allergic patient, while the same treatment on the normal control individual reacted only slightly. It is his belief that it is a specific reaction because the reaction upon the normal control was much smaller and that the patient responded favorably to the desensitization procedures.

Thomas, Femulener, and Touart (1923) found that the viridans streptococcus usually gave early skin reactions and the hemolytic variety next in order, but they claim that late or early reactions are considered to be of equal importance in therapeutic treatment.

Brown (1925) felt that late or 24 hour reaction had a definite diagnostic value. W. T. Vanghan (1931) states, "A delayed positive reaction indicates not only actual sensitization, but also infection". Thomas and Touart (1932), who have made an extensive study of bacterial allergy, believe, as Coca, that the late skin reaction to bacterial entigen indicates a bacterial allergy. They also contend that the early and the late positive reactions are specific phenomena and are due to forms of hypercensitiveness. Doret and Hopphan (1936) find that delayed reaction must indicate bacterial allergy.

Remember that positive skin test reactions may be specific or non-specific. If the positive skin reactions are specific,
careful desensitisation procedures will result in ameliaration and
relief from the allergic symptoms. But if the positive reaction
is not due to a specific cause, desensitisation procedures will not
yield results similar to specific desensitization.

we are not attempting to discuss procedures for desensitisation, but are merely pointing out that the possibilities of erreneous interpretations of the positive skin reactions are ever present. It is needless to stress the accessity of employing controls; the earlier experimental investigations prove that a good control is indispensible.

Positive skin reactions are definitely of value as evidence of allergic condition interpreted properly.

The importance of age as possibility in altering skin reactions must not be ignored. Brown (1925) believes that asthms
beginning after the fortieth year is almost always of bacterial
nature due to the probable lowered resistance. Coke (1927)
claims that in his investigations of the various age groups responding to skin reactions, the skin reactivity decreased with
advancing age. But Present and Miller (1932) disagree with this.

Whatever significance age may have upon skin reactions, the possibility that it is a source of non-specific reaction must not be forgotten. Traut (1936) found that skin tests have little value

in determining what etiological members of the streptococci are present, and he found that allergies were such more sensitive than the non-allergic individuals, regardless of their age.

Many debating and conflicting articles are published concerning skin sensitivity.to the bacterial substances and the exact relationships. The question is: Is the reaction an indication of specificity or non-specificity?

Sicard (1917) treated asthmatics with autogenous streptococcus vaccines. He found that bacterial preparations showing pronounced local reactions to intradernal skin tests, proved to be most effective in the process of desensitisation. Walker and Adkinson (1919) and Thomas, Famulener, and Towart (1923) also agree that the most satisfactory results were obtained in the allergic patients when autogenous bacterial substances were used for the treatment. W. T. Vaughan (1931) claims that bacterial allergy is a specific teaction and that specific desensitization identical to that of anaphylactic desensitisation is possible. Beason (1932) reports that desensitization to streptococcus hypersensitiveness in allergic patients is specific in carefully selected cases. It is the opinion of Thomas and Towart (1932) that the late skin reaction to bacterial vaccine indicates bacterial allergy, also that both the immediate and delayed reactions are specific in their reaction. Dorst and Hopphan (1935) maintain that skin reactions and desensitization are specific, but emphasize that the treatment of allergic cases is an individual problem. Relief and cure

of allergic conditions. Thevisaker (1937) writes, are due to desensitization, not to protein shock therapy.

But Wilmer and Cobe (1932) maintain that relief in the treatment of allergic conditions with streptococcus substances secured by a non-specific protein reaction exists. And Waldbott and Ascher feel that skin reactivity is purely a non-specific protective response of local nature. Peinberg and Resendaal (1934) advocate non-specific reaction in effects produced by the autogenous vaccines.

Opinions favor the specific nature of skin test reactions and desensitization.

It is not our objective to attempt any further explanations or conclusions beyond the present beliefs. The present tendency of the investigators is to favor specificity of bacterial allergics, such as those found in cases of bronchial asthma, migraine, angioneurotic edema, rhinitis and other allergic conditions where the patient does not elicit any significant signs of sensitization to common foods, inhalants, and contactant proteins. This opposes earlier beliefs that bacterial allergy is non-specific and that desensitization is due primarily to non-specific shock therapy.

This opposition is strengthened by present experimental and clinical observations of bacterial allergy which reinforce each other and verify the theory of specificity.

In view of the present theories, one can maintain that bacterial allergy is specific in selected cases. Selected cases means that the patients are carefully diagnosed to exclude any non-

bacterial sensitization, that the etiological agent be attributed to bacteria, and mainly that they respond to desensitization procedures with favorable results.

The skin reactions to the autogenous bacterial substances, as we have attempted to establish them, indicate specific manifestation of bacterial allergy. Investigations have found other manifestations are present with bacterial allergy. The most important one which we will discuss is the high ecsinophilia of sputum and blood.

In the past ecsinophilia was thought to have direct relationship with allergic conditions in general. It has definite diagnostic values in the determination of bacterial allergy when non-bacterial allergy and parasitic infestations have been ruled out. The value of ecsinophilia as a definite diagnostic aid in bacterial allergy is not yet firmly established and accepted.

sterling (1920) found that the average blood ecsinophile per centage varies from 5 - 13. Brown (1925) does not believe that high ecsinophile has much diagnostic significance. The reports that highest ecsinophile counts have been found frequently in non-sensitive patients; and that a definitely asthmatic patient was found to be without ecsinophiles, have been made by Brown. In 1926 Brown made another extensive report on the possible significance of ecsinophilia is various sensitive patients. Asthmatics gave an average of 7 per cent blood ecsinophiles; non-asthmatics gave a 2 per cent count. He concluded that blood and

sputum ecsinophiles were parallel. He believes that ecsinophiles have no effect upon sensitization. Coates and Ersener (1930) maintain that the ecsinophiles were due to an irritative reaction rather than to the infective nature. Gooke (1932) believes that local tissue reactions are responsible for the ecsinophilia. And Van Leewen (1932) does not accept the theory that ecsinophiles have anything to do with allergic conditions. Thomas and Towart (1932) found ecsinophilia with many of their allergic patients. Hume (1936) finds ecsinophiles in the masal secretions of great importance in the diagnosis of allergy. Hunt (1938) states that cosinophiles are quite common in bronchial asthmatics, an average count being about 5 per cent. In his opinion the cosinophile count in an individual is not a static condition but is subject to large variations. He also found that any differentiation between infective and non-infective asthma is impossible. We have a theory that there may be a correlation between high ecsinophile count and skin reactions.

PART II

Experimental

I. Object of the experimental work.

As previously stated the main objective of this experimental work concerns the determination of the species of streptococone isolated from the asthmatics and its correlation with skin reactions; and also the correlation of skin reactions to high ecsinophile counts of the sputum and the blood. Our interest in the possible relationship between the species and the skin reactions was promoted by several factors: From a purely bacteriological standpoint, it is definitely valuable to know the bacteriology of the sputum, stools, nasopharynx, and skin of allergic individuals. Should the classification give a predominence of certain species, it would be a great diagnostic value to the clinicians. A correlation between the skin tests and the species would be a great impetus and value to the allergists. By far, these are not the most important values of such an experiment and moreover it would be an interesting scientific contribution and perhaps a confirmation of come earlier results.

II. Procedures

although an extensive review of methods and techniques might appear appropriate, only reference to the original authors contributing to the particular method will be made. Since Sherman (1937) has written an extensive and a thorough review discussing and evaluating the various methods used in streptococci classification, we have made no attempts to review the vast amount of work that has been published. The methods of classification of streptococci used by Sherman (1937) were adopted and used in our laboratory; since the method excellently serves the important purpose of isolating the related streptococci into distinct and manageable groups.

All the strains of streptococci classified were isolated from specimens received at the Allergy Clinic of the University of Oregon Out-Patient Clinic. The specimens were submitted in sterile containers. With few variations, the method of isolation was similar in all cases.

Sputum specimens: Five-tenths cc. of the sputum was ground in a sterile mortar with sand and 4.5 cc of sterile saline, making a 1-10 dilution of the sputum. From subsequent dilutions of 1-100, 1-1,000, 1-10,000, pour plates were made using 0.5 cc of the diluted solution. 0.7 cc of exalated human blood was added to the infusion agar in making the blood agar plates. Direct smears of the sputum were stained by the Wiber modification of Wright's

stain and 100 white cells were counted for the essinophile per centage.

Stool specimens: A large loopful of stool was inoculated into 4.5 cc saline. This solution was considered a 1-10 dilution of the specimen. As with the sputum specimen, blood agar plates were made of the 1-100, 1-1,000, and 1-10,000 dilutions.

Fasopherynx Swabs, Skin Cultures, etc: The swab was placed in 4.5 sc saline. This solution was considered a 1-10 dilution. Blood agar plates were made of three dilutions, and the sosinophile per centage was determined in the nasopharynx specimen in the same manner as the sputum specimen.

the media used for the cultivation of pure cultures of the streptococci was infusion broth to which had been added 15 dextrese. A small piece of beef brain was placed in each tube, the broth was added and the whole sterilized at 15 pounds pressure for 30 minutes. The organisms grew luxurisatly in 24 hours incubations. Three of the four isolated colonies of each variety of streptococci were selected from a plate of every specimen, inoculated into the brain broth tubes, and allowed to incubate 18 to 24 hours. Organisms from each specimen showing the same type of hemolysis, growth on broth and staining characteristics were considered to be of the same strain. Suspensions of similar streptococci were decented into sterile centrifuge tubes and centrifuged. The supermatant solution in the centrifuge tube was decen-

sequently pipetted into a 10 cc sterile vaccine vial, which was then sealed with a sterile ruber stopper. The sediment remaining in the centrifuge tube was washed twice with sterile Coca's solution, and resuspended in 10 cc. of the buffered salt solution. This suspension was pipetted to a vaccine bottle, capped, and heated for two hours at 55° C. Both the filtrate and suspension were tested for sterility in broth tubes. In this manner a sterile broth-free suspension and broth filtrate were made for each variety of streptococci present in a single specimen.

The organisms obtained for classification and study were inoculated into 1.0 per cent dextrose weal infusion brain broth media (pH 7.4) and incubated for 18-24 hours at 37° C. Growth appeared in the enriched basic media as a flocculatant, homogenous suspension, or heavy precipitate in the bottom of the tube. Before preparing the dilutions for plate inoculation, the culture had been subjected to agitation which thoroughly dispersed the large aggregates of the organisms in the culture media.

The initial step in classification is performed on the blood agar plate. Most satisfactory results are obtained by using 0.7 ml. of rabbit blood with 0.3 per cent potassium oxalste anticosgulant. Care must be exercised to add blood and organisms only to previously melted weal infusion agar cooled to 45° C., for a higher temperature destroys the red corpuscles and less

heat resistant organisms. Following the addition of the blood and inoculation of the organisms, the tubes were carefully shaken and the contents poured into a sterile petre dish. The plates were gently whirled and allowed to remain approximately 10 minutes at room temperature before final incubation at 37° C. for 24-26 hours. Incubation of 18 to 24 hours at 37° C. yielded most satisfactory results; however, further incubation of 48 hours was frequently necessary for the slow growing strains.

The colonies on the plate were classified as producers of hemolysin, methemoglobin or non-producers of reaction upon blood.

The microscopic appearance (Brown, 1919) of hemolytic or beta colonies upon blood agar is characterised by a clear, or distinct, sharp hemolysis some immediately surrounding an elliptical or round colony which upon refrigeration and further incubation does not produce the so-called Shalos or concentric ring formation.

Whereas the methemoglobin producers or the alpha types are usually recognized by a distinct and definite greenish some immediately surrounding an oval or round colony which upon refrigeration produces the "balo" effect. The "balo" phenomena is characterized by a clear some of hemolysis occasionally containing cell fragments encircling the methemoglobin some. Further incubation of 18-25 hours will result in production of a green methoglobin area peripherally to the existing some of hemolysis, produced in this manner.

Following the isolation and classification upon blood

agar a most typical colony is removed and incoulated into 1.0 per cent dextrose yeal infusion broth and incubated at 37° G. for 18 to 24 hours. If the Gram stain prepared from the suspension appears homogenous and free from contaminants, they were considered satisfactory for further classification. The pure culture in 1.0 per cent dextrose weal infusion broth served as a source of inequive for stock cultures and for classification.

The stock cultures were grown upon a commercial preparation. North's gelatin agar (Difco). Transplantation of strains were necessary every twenty to twenty-five days. Previous to retransplantation the slow growing strains were greatly increased in the ability to grow vigorously upon the solid media by inoculation from broth culture.

the classification of the organisms were promptly pursued as immediately as possible. The temperature tolerance tests, 30 minutes at 65° C. and 60° C. were begun first; since during the incubation other tests could be simultaneously performed without appreciable less of time.

Heavy broth suspension containing approximately 500,000,000 organisms were inoculated into a previously heated basic (pH 7.4) weal infusion broth containing 0.0005 per cent acid fushein (1.0 per cent Andredes indicator) and 1.0 per cent dentrose which is utilized by the organism with the production of acid, and consequent lowering of hydrogen-ion concentration. The lowered hydro-

ing from pink to red due to acid hydrolysis of acid fuchsin. To insure an equal emount of heat treatment for each tube, broth heated to 65° C. or 60° C. were inoculated every minute until all of the tubes were inoculated. In this manner the second tube would be taken out one minute after the first tube, third tube would have been removed two minutes after the first tube, etc., and the remaining tubes were removed in a like manner. Each tube taken out of the broth after thirty minutes was promptly cooled to 37° C. and immediately incubated at 37° C. In all cases the growth of heat tolerant organisms appeared within forty-eight hours. Further incubation of five days produced no appreciable change in color of the indicator or the turbidity of the broth.

was also performed in the media used for maximum temperature tolerance test. Inequiations were made into the media at room temperature and placed in respective temperatures. Those strains which would grow in \$5° temperature, produced sufficient growth within 24 hours and in spite of further incubation no changes were apparent after forty-eight hours incubation. The growth at 10° C. required minimum of twenty days for appreciable growth and color change in the indicator. If no changes were apparent after 24 days of refrigeration the test was regarded as negative.

The test to determine the ability of the streptococci to

grow in 6.5 per cent HaCl, 0.1 per cent methylene blue, and high alkalinity, pH 9.6 were performed by inoculating the organisms into freshly prepared media at room temperature.

For the 6.5 per cent MaCl tolerance test, 8.0 ml. of 1.0 per cent dextrose veal infusion broth (pH 7.4) was added to 2.0 ml. of sterilized 30 per cent MaCl shortly before inoculation. Growth appeared within twenty-four hours. However, further incubation of twenty-four hours was frequently necessary.

The methylene blue tolerance test was prepared shortly before use by addition of 1.0 ml. of 1.0 per cent of sterile methylene
blue to 9.0 ml. of sterilized skimmed milk. Inoculations were made
at room temperature and incubated at 37° C. for twenty-four to
forty-eight hours. The ability to reduce methylene blue milk
within twenty-four hours was considered very strong reduction.
Whereas equal reduction requiring seventy-two hours was considered weak in reducing ability. If no apparent changes were visible
after seventy-two hours the test was regarded negative.

The media for pH 9.6 was prepared accurately by the use of glass electrode pH-meter just before the inoculation. To 9.0 ml. of 1.0 per cent lactose weal infusion broth sufficient sterile 1/H HeOH was added to give the reaction a pH of 9.6. The turbidity of the broth within forty-eight hours served as an index of positive growth.

The hydrolysis test of starch was performed in liquid media, containing weal infusion broth, and 0.1 per cent soluble

starch. The organisms were inoculated and incubated 37° C. for five days. One milliterer of Gram's iodine was placed in the media. One ml. of Gram's iodine was also placed in an uninoculated media. The test was recorded as positive if the color of the iodine treated media was lighter than the control tube, which was almost black.

An assculin hydrolysis test was also performed in liquid media containing 0.1 per cent sesculin and 0.05 per cent ferric citrate. After the organisms were insculated in the media, incubation of twenty-four hours at 37° C. was sufficient to indicate hydrolysis of assculin. The formation of a dark brown or black color throughout the media by the combination of hydrolysed products, assculin and ferric ions was positive indication of hydrolysis.

Stabs were made in gelatin media for gelatin liquifaction test. Incubation of twenty to twenty-five days at room temperature followed by liquifaction was regarded as positive.

pension gave congulation without peptonisation regardless of length of incubation, congulation and peptonisation, or no apparent reaction upon milk. Congulation took place within twenty-four hours and if peptonisation was to be affected, the reaction was complete within seventy-two hours.

In order to minimize the hazard of contaminants in the tests, two broth cultures were made of each strain. Second broth

culture was employed in fermentation or acid production from various sugars. Approximately 5 x 10⁸ organisms were inoculated to insure heavy growth. The media composed of basic (pR 7.4) Hartley broth containing 5 x 10⁻¹⁴ per cent acid fuchsin (1.0 per cent Andredes) proved quite satisfactory for fermentation media. Control tubes without the sugars were prepared to be inoculated for each test organism.

The sugars were sterilized in neutral solutions to minimize hydrolysis and added to previously sterilized Hartley broth in 0.5 per cent concentration for rare sugars and 1.0 per cent final concentration for less rare ones. Several days previous to classification, the concentrated sugar solutions were added to suitable concentrations of 90 ml. of Hartley broth followed by twenty-four hours incubation at 37° C. If no growth of contaminants or changes were apparent, the media was aseptically tubed and incubated again to insure perfect sterility. The sterile clear media was heavily inoculated and incubated at 37° C. for five days; although twenty-four hours to forty-eight hours were sufficient for indication of strong fermentation reaction.

Although there are varying degrees of fermentation, any degree of positive change was recorded as positive test. Frequently, the test or the "sugar" tubes contained sugar which gave a positive reaction, in which case comparison was made with the control tube and "sugar" tube. If the "sugar" tube gave deeper

color tint than the control, the test was regarded as positive.

These groups of tests were carried out in the first series immediately upon isolation of the strains. The second series of tests were composed of fibrinolysis test and Lancefield's
precipitin test for the serological classification of the pyogenic streptococci. The cultures for the second series of tests
were taken from stock cultures which were kept in refrigeration.

III. Methods and Techniques.

Hemolysis. The reactions of the streptococci upon blood were determined by the use of rabbit blood agar, a method introduced by Brown (1919). Instead of defibrinated horse blood,

0.3 per cent exalated rabbit blood was used, because of greater convenience of obtaining fresh lots of blood and the reactions of the organisms upon the rabbit blood agar seemed to reproduce quite faithfully the reaction obtained upon the human or horse blood.

The agar base was composed of veal infusion broth prepared in the usual manner. Inoculation was made upon cooling (12 ml.) of melted veal infusion agar to 45° C. and upon addition of 0.7 cc. of 0.3 per cent exalated rabbit blood. By means of serial dilutions, 75 to 250 organisms were inoculated into the liquified blood agar, which was carefully poured into a sterile Petri dish and permitted to cool 10 minutes after gentle mixing.

The rate of growth of a particular strain determined the length of the incubation period. In most instances 24 hours' incubation at 37° C. was sufficient to yield differential characteristics. Preliminary readings were made immediately as alpha, beta, or gamma types. The criteria of Brown (I) was followed for determination of types of hemolysis.

The alpha colonies were surrounded by a definite area of greenish some of methonoglobin. Under a low power of the microscope the greenish some was less apparent, but in outer portions

of the some there was possibly a slight some hemolysis. Grossly to the sye the deep colonies appeared as small biconvex, greenish colonies, while the surface colonies were round, flatly glistening, and greenish by transmitted light. The alpha prime, methemoglobin producers, upon ice-chest storage of 24 hours produced a definite ring of hemolysis immediately out-side of the methemoglobin some, thus concentric somes of hemolysis were produced by incubation and ice-chesting until several rings of hemolysis were produced.

The alpha prime type of Brown (1919) is a strain of etroptococci resembling closely the beta type upon the blood agar.
Grosely it has all the characteristics of a beta colony with a
sone of apparently clear hemolysis immediately to the outer edge
of the colony, but upon examination with the low power of the
microscope, many discolored and fragmented cells are found most
abundantly in the proximity of the peripheral edge of the colony,
which presents a hazy appearance. Upon storage of 24 hours in the
ice-chest, apparent concentric ring of hemolysis were observed;
the initial sone of hemolysis was noticeably enlarged and had
become rather diffuse.

The beta types were isolated upon the following criteria of Brown (1919):

This type of reaction upon blood agar may be described as a colony surrounded by a definitely clear, colorless some of hem-

olysis. A microscopic examination reveals no fragments of partially discolored corpuscles in the area immediately surrounding the colony. The distinguishing characteristics appear much earlier than the alpha types and are quite definitely developed in 18 hours at 37° C. The colony has a grayish appearance by the transmitted or reflected light. The surface and the deep colonies alike are surrounded by characteristic sones of hemolysis.

Further incubation at 37° C. for 24 hours does not appreciably increase the area of hemolysis. A period of 24 hours refrigeration as one might expect, does not increase the area of hemolysis, nor does the second period of incubation substantially produce apparent changes in the hemolysis area.

The gamma types of appearance on blood agar are characterised by the following properties:

According to the accepted criteria of differentiation, the gamma type produces a growth of colonies within and on the blood agar plate without the production of any perceptible hemolysis or discoloration of the surrounding medium during the incubation or refrigeration period.

Aesculin Hydrolysis

The ability of the streptococci to hydrolyse sesculing was determined in the absence of bile salts by a medification of Weatherall and Dible's (1929) method.

A heavy broth suspension of 18 to 20 hours was insculated into a broth containing 0.1 per cent assoulin, 0.05 per cent ferric citrate. Immediately after the insculation the tubes were insubated at 37° C. for a period of 5 days; although twenty-four hours yielded sufficiently necessary reactions of the test. A formation of dark brown coloration throughout the media, due to the ferric salt of the hydrolysate assculin, ferric assculitin, was considered characteristic indication of assculin hydrolysis. Any detectable discolorations varying from the control tube indicate hydrolysis or a positive reaction.

Starch Hydrolysis (II)

One tenth per cent soluble starch in veal infusion broth was used to determine the ability of the streptococci to hydrolyse starch. The starch broth media was inoculated heavily with a suspension of 15 to 20 hours culture and immediately incubated at 37° C. for five days which was sufficient incubation for the complete hydrolysis of the starch; frequently within 45 hours some strains were able to completely hydrolyse the starch. Five tenth ml. of 0.33 per cent indine and 0.7 per cent potassium indide in aquous solution was placed in the broth media. After ten minutes, if no distinct or apparent reaction had taken place between the starch and the indine, the positive reaction is clear and slightly reddish blue,or yields no reaction with the addition of the indine, unlike the dark blue coloration of the control or a negative test.

Methylene Blue Telerance (7)

The method introduced by Sherman and Albus (1918) proved to be the most satisfactory for the determination of the ability of the streptococci to grow in the presence of a final concentration of 0.1 per cent methylene blue. The media was prepared by adding 1.0 ml. of sterile 1.0 per cent medicinal methylene blue solution to 9.0 ml. of previously sterilized skimmed milk.

A heavy suspension of 15 to 20 hours broth culture served as an inoculum for the test. The positive results were apparent and recognizable usually at the end of 24 hours incubation with partial reduction the methylene blue accompanied by only coagulation of the milk or coagulation with subsequent proteclysis of the coagulum. Frequently, some strains required 48 to 72 hours incubation to yield an appreciable reduction. The indication of the positive test was determined by the presence of any apparent reduction of the methylene blue with coagulation or coagulation and liquifaction of the coagulum.

Maximum Heat Tolerance (5, 4, 14, 15)

Instead of following strictly the method of Sherman and Stark (1931), a slightly modified method was used for the thermal resistance determination. The original test used by Sherman and Stark (1931) consisted of inoculating previously heated tubes with 1.0 ml. of milk culture which had been grown for 2 days at 37° C. Viability and the apparent number of organisms were determined by plating upon the lactose agar plate after and previous to the inoculation at the respective temperatures. Basic (pH 7.4) veal infusion broth containing approximately 0.0005 per cent acid fuchein (1.0) per cent Andrades) and 1.0 per cent dextrose replaced the milk media of the original test. Approximately 500,000,000 organisms were inoculated from a 24 hours veal infusion broth culture into a previously heated media, (60° and 65° C.) and after the inoculation it was incubated exactly 30 sinutes at the desired temperature. In order to insure an equal temperature treatment, a tube was insculated every minute until all were insculated. In this manner the second test tube would have had the same amount of incubation one minute after the first tube had been incubated exactly 30 minutes and the third tube would have had the required amount of incubation 2 minutes after the first tube, and so on to the last tube. A care was exercised to minimize the differences of temperature on the surface of the media, due to the evaporation

by maintaining constantly the level of the hot water 5 to 6 mm.

above the level of the media within the tube. The test tubes

were promptly subjected to cooling after exactly 30 minutes of

heating and placed in an incubator at 37° C. Reading of the re
sults was possible after 24 hours, but 48 hours incubation seemed

more satisfactory for the final determination.

A positive test was characterized by the change of the colorless media to various degrees of pink to red of the acid fuchsin; the living heat resistant organisms hydrolizing the dextrose to acid is responsible for the change in the indicator system.

Temperature Limits of Growth 10° C. and 45° C. (2.3)

The uses of the temperature limits of growth of the streptococci was introduced by Sherman and Albus (1918) and Sherman
(1937). The original experiment at low temperatures of incubation was conducted by inequiating lithus milk with the cultures
and incubating them at desired temperatures. Growth was determined by the presence or the absence of visible change in the litmus milk.

For this experiment, instead of the original litaus milk, 1.0 per cent dextrose weal infusion broth with 1.0 per cent Andrades indicator was used. Immediately previous to the inoculation the tubes of media were placed in 45° C. water bath and for the 10° C. growth test, the media was placed in the ice chest for 30 minutes before inoculation. Inoculations were made as rapidly as possible at the room temperature, followed immediately by placing them in their respective temperatures.

The reaction of the 45° C. test was apparent and visible at the end of 24 hours incubation. Usually an additional 24 to 45 hours incubation did not produce any appreciable change in the intensity of the indicator.

At 10° C. the growth required to produce appreciable changes in the indicator ranged from sixteen to twenty days. After refrigeration of 24 days the intensity of the indicator was not changed. The reactions were recorded as positive or negative after 24 days of refrigeration.

Sodium Chloride Tolerance (8)

The test to determine the ability of the streptococci to grow in the final concentration of 6.5 per cent sodium chloride (Sherman, 1921) gave consistent and satisfactory results when the media was prepared immediately before the immodiation. A final concentration of 6.5 per cent sodium chloride was obtained by the addition of 2 ml. of 30 per cent sterile sodium chloride solution to 5.0 ml. of 1.0 per cent dextrose infusion broth previously sterilized with 0.0005 per cent moid fuchsin (1.0 per cent Andreas).

The inoculation was made immediately with a heavy broth suspension of organisms grown 18 to 20 hours in veal destrose infusion broth. The indication of growth was usually apparent at the end of 24 hours, but 48 hours incubation yielded much more satisfactory results. Although the reactions were seemingly complete at the end of 48 hours, the readings and final observations were not made until the end of four to five days. The tubes containing cloudy suspension or heavy precipitate accompanied by the changes of the indicator to various bases of pink to red were regarded as positive. A clear broth tube without an apparent change in the indicator was regarded as negative or absence of growth.

Proteolysis (6)

Sterilized skimmed milk heavily inoculated with 15 to

20 hours dextrose veal infusion broth culture and incubated at

37° C. for 45 hours yields satisfactory evidence of proteolysis

and coagulation of milk proteins. Some stains were only able to

coagulate the milk regardless of the length of the incubation. Others were able to coagulate and liquify the coagulum, while frequently some would not produce any apparent reactions upon the

milk. The final recordings and readings were made after five days

of incubation.

For gelatin liquifaction test large loopfuls of broth culture were stabled into the solid gelatin media. The incubation was made at room temperature for 4-5 days. The gelatin media was liquified in the positive test.

The pH 9.6 Telerance (5)

The method introduced by Sherman (1921) for the determination of high alkaline tolerance proved to be very satisfactory and effective in classification. To previously sterilized lactors well infusion broth in 9.0 ml. quantities containing 0.0005 per cent acid fuchsin (1.0 per cent Andrades indicator), immediately before, use, sufficient I/H MaOH is added to give a reaction of pH 9.6. The initial volume of I/H MaOH to be added was determined by the glass electrode pH meter (Beckman). A new determination of the correct amount of I/H MaOH to be added for each test was necessary because the alkali invariably absorbed Go2 from the air, subsequently lowering the normality of the alkali. Thus, if the original volume was added the resulting pH would be lower than pH 9.6.

An inoculum of approximately 500,000,000, organisms from 18 to 20 hours dextrose veal infusion broth was added to the tube and immediately incubated at 37° C. for 48 hours. If no growth occurs at the end of 48 hours incubation period the test is recorded negative.

Fibrinolytic Activity (12,13)

The method introduced and used by Tillett and Garner (1933) was followed in the determination of the fibrinolytic activity.

Ten ml. of normal human blood was placed in a tube containing 0.02 gm. of potassium oxalate. A 2.0 per cent solution of
potassium oxalate is placed in tubes which are placed in the dry
heat sterilizer and dried 10 ml. of blood, immediately after withdrawal, is mixed with the dry powder. The blood was then immedintely centrifuged to lessen any spontaneous hemolysis. The supermatent plasma was asseptically removed and placed in a sterile container.

The cultures were grown 18 to 20 hours in a veal infusion broth containing 0.05 per cent dextrose. In performing the test, 0.2 ml. of fresh plasma, not over 24 hours old (since withdrawal), was diluted with 0.8 ml. of 0.85 per cent saline solution in a tube to be used for the test. To this, I:5 dilution of the plasma, 0.5 ml. of the supermatent fluid of the culture and 0.25 ml. of a 0.25 per cent solution of CaCl2 in 0.85 per cent sodium chloride solution was added and thoroughly mixed. The tubes were then placed in a water bath at 37° C. and the time at which congulation occurred was noted. Solid congulation was considered completed when the tube could be inverted without affecting the solid form of the clot, which adheres to the bottom and sides of the

tubes. Usually no fluid, or only small drops escape from the tube. The tubes were left in the water bath for two hours of continual observation for the complete dissolution of fibria clot and was regarded positive when the contents of the tube were completely liquified. The test was regarded negative if no dissolution occurred after a period of two hours.

Precipitin Reaction

For the determination of groups of hemolytic streptococci. the original Lancefield method was strictly followed:

I. Immune Sera.

Rabbits were immunised with formalised cultures
as follows: The bacterial sediment from 18 hour broth culture
was suspended in one-twentieth volume of 0.85 per cent sodium
chloride solution to which formalin was added in a final concentration of 0.2 per cent. After 48 hours in the ice box these
bacterial suspensions were sterile. Immediately before use they
were diluted with physiological salt solution to the original
volume of the culture. Daily intravenous injections of 1.0 cc.
were given for a week, followed by a week's rest. Two to four
series of injections were made. Although good antisers were obtained after two series, for or more courses were sometimes required. On the fifth day after the last injection test bleedings
were made and the serum of animals showing a good titer was collected and stored in the ice box without a preservative.

All strains tried gave usable antisers by this method, although some were better antigens than others. After serial subcultures in 10 per cent type specific immune serum, the resulting culture was relatively devoid of type-specific substances and proved the best antigen for inducing the formation of anti-C precipitin specific for each group.

Antisers for the strain of human original (group A) were chiefly those which had been prepared by a method already described ed employing increasing doses of heat-killed organisms followed by living cultures, although the method already described was satisfactory for these also. With many of the strains of the other groups it was impossible to use a scheme of immunisation necessitating the injection of living culture, since too great a loss of animals resulted.

Antisera were tested with entracts of both homologous and heterologous strains of the same group in order to make sure of the presence of the group ant-C precipitin. The type-specific anti-body for a subgroup, or type, was often present in addition to the group anti-C precipitin used in this classification, and was sometimes the only antibody present. Consequently if an entract of the homologous strain were the only one used in testing a serum, a type-specific reaction might be obtained which would mask the group, or anti-C precipitin reaction, and the presence or absence of this anti-C precipitin might not be discovered.

Since this classification is based on the anti-C precipitin reaction, it was essential in testing antisers to employ an extract of a strain of heterologous type but homologous group, as measured by the anti-C reaction.

II. Extracts.

Extracts were made by a method previously employed in preparing the type-specific substance, M. of strains of human origin. The bacterial sediment from 250 cc. of an 18 hour broth culture was suspended in 5 cc. of physiological salt solution containing sufficient nermal hydrochloric acid to make a final concentration of N/20 HGl. The reaction of the suspension was tested with Congo red paper, and if necessary, enough hydrochloric acid was added to turn the paper blue. The tube was then immersed in boiling water for 10 minutes, cooled under running water, and centrifuged. The supernature fluid was neutralized, the resulting precipitate discarded, and the water-clear supernature fluid was used in the precipitin test. Obviously, such a crude extract contained a mixture of substances, but these did not interfers with the reaction under consideration.

III. Precipitin Test.

In performing this test, increasing amounts of extract were placed in a series of tubes, usually up to 0.4 cc. with normal salt solution, and a control tube with 0.4 cc. of the same dilvent was included. A constant volume of 0.2 cc. of undiluted antiserum was layered in each tube and allowed to stand for 10 to 30 minutes either at room temperature or in the water bath at 37° C. in order to observe ring formation. The tubes were then shaken and incubated for 2 hours at 37° C. in the water bath.

Sometimes a larger series of dilutions was employed, but no difference in result was obtained. Extracts from all strains were tested in the same way.

Fermentation Reactions

Gordan (1905s and 1905b) applied fermentation in a broad way, using many disaccharides, monosaccharides and glucosides for the classification of the streptococci.

Many other investigators have been given credit for such work, but a variation of Gordan's method gave satisfactory results. Instead of sugar free beef broth, we used Hartley broth. Hartley broth contains foreign fermentable substances, which were eliminated by the use of controls for each strain of organism. The inoculated control tubes contained no sugars; consequently any reaction shown was due to the foreign sugars. Comparisons were made with the control and "test" tubes. In all cases reactions were found to be clear-cut and definite. The Hartley broth was prepared in 90 ml. amounts with 15 andrades indicator and sterilized at 15 lb for 30 minutes. The various sugars were separately sterilized in outral concentrated solutions to minimize any hydrolysis. Rare sugars were prepared in 5 per cent solution while others were made up in 10 per cent solutions. They were sterilized in 50 ml. vaccine vials and aseptically capped. For preparing the media, 10 ml. of the concentrated solution was withdrawn with sterile 10 ml. syringe and aseptically injected into 90 ml. of Hartley broth. This broth was then placed in the incubation at 37° C. for 48 hours. If there was no apparent contamination, the media was promptly pipetted aseptically into

tubes in 5 ml. amounts and again incubated to insure sterility.

Heavy 18-20 hour broth suspensions were inoculated into the media and usually a 24 hours incubation was sufficient to bring about differential results, but 5 days of incubation was given to all.

Positive results were those showing definite deeper coloration of the media than the control tubes.

The test involving the use of media containing 4 per cent peptone for the determination of ability of the streptococci to produce ammonia proved early in our experiment confusing and inconsistent. The test was abandoned after several careful tests failed to give consistent results.

Sodium hippurate hydrolysis also seemed frequently to give inconsistent results in spite of meticulous care in its preparation and use of controls. Because of its unpredictable deviations and inconsistency the test was not used.

The Basis of the Classification of the Progenic Streptocect

Species of Streptococcus				Lencefield A.	one Proge	Proprieto C Hear ICE	Street Cooccus Progenta	pyo	Luncefleld Group E	ous Pyo	Lancefield Group G	Streptococcus Pyogenes	Lancelleld Group H	
		XVLOSe												Production
		albitag	+		+		+	+		+		+		
F		Lotidade	1		1		+	++		1		1		
		Total tol	++		1		1	++		1		1	_	
Produced	-	Linulin	1	-	+	_	1	+	Н	+	-	1	_	ā .
450		ason 11sA	1	H	1		1	1		1	-	-	_	
Sa Dis		Prehalose	1	-	1	-	1	+		7	-	+	_	
Acid		७८०३ ३ छन्	+	-	1		+			T	-	+1	_	
		Sugrouse	+	-	4	-	+	+ #		+	-	+1	_	
		080178M	++	-	++		+	+		+		+++	_	
		esonldsyk.	Ī		i	=)	ï	Ī		1	\forall	i	_	
Selituall missled			1	1	i		i	T	Н	1	-		_	
	рет	nith card	1	-	-							-		-
ST		g witness	_	-	+1		1	1		4		1		
		War and the same	+		+		+	+		-4		+		
80	isvíorh	vit doreste	1		+1		+	H		-41		1		
Active fibrinolysis			1		+1		1	T		+1		ī		
sedurate 05 089					T		1	i				÷		
TBA	Surving	009	1	-	1						7	-	_	
1	doldoub	or shorts	+	-			-			+		1		
9 6 yd		1	-	1		1					1			
ice or	neerd	T**8*B**	-	-	1			-		1	() ()	1		
ur t	GHOLD	TOWNSS'S	1		1		1	1		4		_		110
			-		1		1					1	West.	BI
	10 H 29 T 10	42°C	1		1		L.	1		1		+		9136
4= [Growth	Doot	1		1		1	1		ŀ		T		1
Lancelleld Group			+		+		+	+		+		+1/		35
	mora b.	fallasmed								1				100
Mumber of Species			10		7.4		prof.	9		12		ಜ		* M.B. Methylene Blue

Table I b

The Basis of Classification of

The Viridans and Lactic Streptococcus

		Species of	Streptococcus Salvarius	ATLICATION	Streptococcus Salvarius		Streptococcus Equinus	Viridans	Streptococcus Bovis Viridans	Streptococcus Thermophilus	Viridans		R. C. S.	Lactic	Streptococcus Cremoris	Lactic	49.
		Xylose								Ш		1	-+	#	1	4	
		+1		+		+		+			-	-	+1	+	4		
		-		1		1		+		4	+	+	1	11	-1	- 1	
		LotinaM			1		-		1	1	\dashv	+	-	 -	1	-	
d		CJAcerol	-+	_	+		+	-		#	\dashv	+	+			1	
ti ii		Inulin	++	-	+		4		+	1	1	+	1	1			
Çeç	-	esonillaA	#	-	+		4		4					1	1		
òdu		Lactose TTehalose	+		1		T		+	1			1	+	+		
produced		Sucrose	+		1		+1		+	+				+	+		
		Sectian	+		+		+		+	1				H	+		
Acid		SconidsTA	1		1		1		+	1				+1	1		
	dulited	Gelatin Li	+		1		1		1	1				1	1		1
WITH CULATED			+1		-+1		1		+	+				+	+		
Esculin Hydrolysis		+		++		+		+	1			4	1	+	_	-	
	Starch Hydrolysis				1		+1		+				-	+			g
Active fibrinolysis			1		I		1		1	1				1	1		blood
0 77	•nim 05				ı		1		1	1				1			on k
Levivius 009				I		1		1	1				1	+			
	Strong reduction				T		1			1				1	出		tio
		9°6 ₄ d	1		1		1		1	1				1		4	read
Growth in presence 10		J°% M°B°	1		T		1			1				1	+		#
		6.5% Nacl	1		1		1		1	1				1		_	apparent reaction
	3.B	₹2 _o C	1		1		+		+	+	Ц			1			ddi
TO _o C Growth		1		1		1		1	1	Ц			+	1		0	
-		Hemolysis	1		1		1		1	1	Ц			1		-	ou s
	dnoig	Lencefield															000
Number of			49		54		rg rg		41	П				- 4	F		* Produces

Fable I.c

The Basis of Classification of

Interococci Streptococcus

	Species of	Streptococcus	Streptococcus fecalis		Streptococcus Liqui-	faciens Enterococci	Streptococcus Zymo-	genes Enterococci	Streptococcus Durans	Anterococci.		The same of the sa
or its opinion	species for the States of the States	-56 Lein	-+		+		1		41			
- 4		Eortoltol	+	-	1-		+		1		1	
		Glycerol	+	-	+	+	+	H	-		-	Ì
			1	-	+	-	-	Н	1		1	
12		atteni	+	-	+1	+	-+1	H	1		1	
ced		Prehalose Seorilias	-	+	+	\vdash	+	\vdash	+1		1	
Produced		esotos.	+	-	+	-	+	\vdash	+	-	1	-
		Sucrose		-	-++	+		H		_	1	
Acid		es od Lehi	+1	-	-	\vdash	++	\vdash	+	_	-	
400		Arabinose Manage	+	-	+	-	+		1	-	1	1
	The second second	[mlasfed	1	-	+	-	+	-		-	1	
-		MIJE Onto	+		+		+		+			1
-	startomp.	B attmes	+		+		+		+		1	
	drolysks	Starch By	- 1		1		1		1			
4	prinolysis	Vettag it	-1		1		1		1			
6	stunia 08	029	+		+		+		+1			
	Survival	009	Т		+		+		+			1
	nottont	er anorte	+		+		+		1			1
	10	9*6 _u d	+		+		+		+		Blue	1
	Presence	**B*# %*T	+		+		+		+		0	ı
3	at advoord	fosh 48.0	1		+		+		+		Methylene	
_		72 ₀ C	+		+		+	1	+		thy	
	Growth at	70 ₀ C	+		+		+	1	+	_		I
-		Hemolysis	1				+	1	1		a,	1
	quord a	rencerier					1	1	7		· 编	I
	Final	Species	è	2	r.	4	u.		p-			-

IV. Classification of the Streptococcus

In the classification of the streptococcus extreme care and caution must be alertly exercised to obtain uniform and accurate results. In spite of the precautions in technique and interpretations, some groups of the streptococcus were found diffigult to classify. The viridans group demonstrated that irregularities and variations very frequently occur. One of its chief variations was its reaction on blood agar. The genus type of Brown gave reactions identical in every respect to that of viridans type. Those species giving gamma type reactions on blood agar and giving other reactions identical to viridans were classified as variants of the viridane. The most aumerous of viridans were the salvarius. Typical salvarius constituted 24.5 per centum of all the species isolated. A typical salvarius giving gamma reaction blood composed 10.7 per cent of all the species. The total salvarius species was approximately 35 per cent. With interest was the discovery that Streptococcus equinus was found in larger number than expected with 7.5 per cent. Several species of streptococcus bovis and thermophilus were found. One strain of streptococcus lactis and cremous is also included.

The disselfication of the pyogenic group offered very few obstacles in differentiation. Careful isolation on the blood agar emabled primary differentiation to be established. Great coution must be exercised in the selection of this group for the

so-called alpha-prime of Brown may be classified as a pyogenic group. The Lancefield precipitin test gave unquestionable and dependable results. The other biochemical reactions faithfully correlated with the Lancefield precipitin test. With interest is the pathogenic specie, Lancefield A, which was found and it constituted 5 per cent. Lancefield "C" or the so-called Human "C" which may at times be pathogenic, composed 7 per cent of all the species. Another specie which may be pathogenic, the Lancefield G, was frequently found (6 per cent). Several other species with a sum of 2 per cent were found. The total pyogenic group constituted approximately 20 per cent of the isolated strains. The majority of the pyogenic, viridans, and Lactic species were isolated from the sputum of the nasopharynx.

The species giving the least difficulty in classification were the members of the Enterococci. Their reactions were regular and dependable. Streptococcus fecalis was the most abundant of all the enterococci species, 27.5 per cent. The hemolytic enterococci, streptococcus symogenes was next in order of abundance (7.5 per cent). A few streptocuccus liquifactions and durans were found (1 per cent).

The total number of viridans streptococcus identified in routine classification is 60 per cent of all the strains. The total hemolytic species, 27 per cent, and the remaining per cent is composed of gamma type of Brown, which fell into Salvarius species by biochemical reaction and the lactic species.

The classified and identified species were gathered in a table with skin reactions and essinophile counts and the unwieldly table was placed in this section for a reference to the subsequent analytical charts and tables.

Species are identified by a serial number which is composed of a number and two letters. Example: 56 - A - S. 56 represents the order number of the specie and the "A" represents the first letter of the patient's name and the "S" represents the source in this case sputum.

TABLE

Chart of Clinical and Experimental Data Used In This Work

per s		**	#	*	des	ě	***	章	3	\$	1	hoğ	20		4	sages .		610	Pa	20	\$ a p	1	· ·	•	•	1	***	à	*	章	64	C'en	. Bert	, 100 m	兼	9
Recetions	2 1	di Serie	Book Book	book	禁 4	the d	dox	had had	李鸣	3-4	4-4	hot hot	finis	Fred	Book	1-1		Pa	泰安	(Jea	Marie Marie	See .	poş	bed.	b-4	Bezil.	*		Ind Soci feed took	\$ cal	Overfi for #	had just	Service Control	Bud	. Jesself	Mis
Setn B	87.0	4 99 14 44	9	. 4	1	*	100	*	***	deserge deserge	Sound Sound	1-1	treat total	Sout Sout	\$od.	f-od		arisah		1- + teagl	\$100 dd	80.9	#Pa	(p-e	£ *	質い学	ŧ	g-e	C+to	4	Prof.	front front	Second Second Second	1200	**	\$ see
	Vacet	- (B)	15	Beerl	100		1	1	Marie .	*	*	1	1	1		*		相		4	*	40		-	-		1	trel	Ges	1	*	\$	1		ŧ	
Strentococca	201000	and Source	Service Carte Anna	Larcolleld C 1-8-0	Fecal 2 2 E-E-E	Selverius 4-8-3	Lancetteld L. 5-8-5	2-u-me 6-4-5	Fecaling 7-n-F	Selvarius (1) 8-2-3	Labcafleid C 9-7-3		7	Larceffeld A. 11-5-5	Linitaciens 1:-0-F	Zyeogenes 14-C-F		Pocults 15-R-F	Section Surrenties	Larcoffeld A 17-2-5	Salvarius 18 % o	Manual Bolles Company	PROFIGO MILMS TOLLY		Salvarius friend	Pecells 22-4-P	Fee118 25-5-F	Focalia 25-C-F	Symptomes 20 C.P.	Popula 27-0-2	Server and and and and	Lancelield C :3-3-S	20	F000118 01-6-F	Salvarine St. P.S.	の な の で の と の の の の の の の の の の の の の の の の
はこうの	(V)	9	Sales .			1				*			1					*	*				*				*	1		1	1			*		
Kopino mile	a a	i i	out	7		OV.				10			rts	×				খু	4				00				9	(34)		Č**	and a			r=4	¥1	
M. Tosis							Ap Chus								184 188																Allerate	Retait Le				
TOTAL TOTAL			The state of the s							* ECZOZIA	Transpar	Trouble	H				1000	Paroxy sa	Urthourie	Dyepnes	Shepalas		Kay Lever	Autima			Astina	As these			Ch. Strep.	Sron		海の大山田の		
Age		- 23				S			173	8	Ī		io		(-		10	-	Ö				44					143 143		83	egi Eur			pod Eur	1	
to the spins		2	The state of			. ?				in the			200		****		*		9				Walter of the last				4	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		*	**			***	**	
0000			9						55740	95480			83768		38476		70307		78087				11100					111987			32.25			1760.5	0000	

	-4	find	-		4	1		**	No.	*	ŧ	4	Mode	(Market	1		Bred Bred St. I	\$ 5-1 \$ 5-1 \$ 5-1		*	¥	ŧ		t	熱病	ð	\$	***	4807	*	*	1	g'un	Beed	4
9		如境	prod fred fred		Zoss	A hos	身 日本方	神事	-	and prof	Beil	を受	J oseph Market	l fori	i for	4	Siena	g grad	Ser. S	fred		· Providence		Sec. S	And Ind	***	Service Services	\$100 B	1000	\$700	***	ina	*	Book Served	Que
	¥	李山寺	ţ		(Pa) (A)	a fio	- · · · ·	lands.	igo u	\$	facility of	4	A. Carrier	1)	1-4	9-4	i in wi	*	<i>લું</i> કેલ્ફ્રેટ	1		ŧ	ŧ	*	4	South Book	\$and		grade .	如時	o tak	good	ja.
	ale	ŧ	*		40	ğ		į.	1	1	Ž.	查	85	Marie		!	tract	ş . §	¢	1	*	ş		-	Q-10	2-4	*	p .7	\$call	等		#	*	*	
10 cm 10 cm	2000	101	の中心			S. C.			5.	4170	ing the state of	の予禁一學學	10 - 10 - 10 to	9	W 2 CV		48-5-8		1	5-17-20	OF S	のでは、		544L	でした。	8640	なっている	5-00	200	80-0-0	614	6240	50 00 00		(A)
And the second s	ななからなった日	Lencelleld	は地域なるなどの		100000 ·	20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10			13.001.101.10 C	Equipme	ないではつのは	Salvarius	D DISCRETE OF CO.	\$ 151 E 1 TO 1	The state of the s			Lancer lell &		LANCES LOLG C	Salvarius	のは、このは		Synogenes	Salvarius	Luncefield C	Salvarius	Salverius	Marinis	Salvarius	Lancefield G	the country of		Tarrestrate c	Separate Sep
30	d.				×	9		*				*			4		1		pro1			proof.			*			\$		*			Y		
· Andrews	d d				×							Social			N		(red		(mark)			60			173					pod			103		
															37.							Asthes	Allergic	White the				Srondital	A. S. P. S.						
					Bronchitie		,	*								Vagorio Con	Rilliatera		当のもれるの														Scooning	Magai Obst.	
李郎	es.			i i			6	i de				C-1				is it			\$ L	2.4 2.4		20 X			0			63		1			0	. 1	
\$4.00°	*			Čita			***************************************	8	Y			, and			St.	180			in the same			黨			***		- 8	***		湖					
60000				22907			ないないない	9				8			112859	20208			106478		- C-100 C-10	1000000			100870			40061	Carlotte Co.	65558			30181		

							_	-		-												-					-	_		-	_			-
0	ĝ-a		Long	getie	8			g	Sept.	\$850 \$100 \$100 \$100 \$100 \$100 \$100 \$100 \$1	4		j mi		ð		a might	9	養	4	Kerd	於母	1	新教		費			各時		do h	200		1
Sand	Series Series	和特	grand.	Prof.	S of the state of			多看	\$ 4	卷四條	for all	4	to took	\$	香店	×4	如清		如	和雄	如傳	神通		***	,	李水等		great grant	歌音五峰			如曹		Patr
lant	1		777						Ind	ł	(B) in		1 1	§ 3	a p			4	à			in sign		を		*		Seed to the			4	1		STA STATE
*	囊	ğ	4-9	\$	1			\$	\$ out	1	-	*				0	1	\$ mod	fred	grandly.	1	- Span	â	land				See See	·	7		-		
0 Crain (2) O'T-0-0	68-11-59	が一年の四	70-4-5	0000	3			The state of the s	からはいかい	20-2-05	8-7-94	200	77-3-8	1			22	37-2-18	80% B-CS	200	00-00-100 00-100	37-55-10 GO	SS-22-38	なっている		9000		2003	20-0-0		ST TE			
Partus offer	Salvarius 1	Larrentelld G	Salvarius A	Salvarius.	wancefield C.			Salvarius	Lancofield G	Euchus (1)	Salvarius (2)	1	Salvarius (2)			Lences Lette La	Selverine	からいるかであっていた	E tribus	Fecalls	Salvarias	Lancelleid E	Fection.	# T.		Calvarian (g)		Boyle	Luinus (s)		Salvarius	* SCALLS		Service of the servic
	N. S.			4				H		*			ı	4	•			ch			10			4		ŧ					3			1
	Series			2 3 k	1			3		prof		*	ì		4			g- d			10 to 10			Same .		profi		West of the Party			****			4
													D. cteria.						Bacterial	のないは				*	Asthma			52.35		TOUR STATE	The Court of		2007-7-10-4	から ない
				Thank Cha.	of system earld	Bricesing	Altechs sheez-	ing and dyapped		はのないのか。			. 1	The state of the s				\$000 th			Dranching	では、これのは、				Cough with	dy space	Bronchial .		12-	Heylorer			
	C)	d		. 1			ey to	-		3)	ot.	ě		1	NO NO			P			26 g		000		000	1	10		1	8	
	等		1	Înș		5	****			de Comp		2		d April 3	Marine Committee			*			**			· Salay		*		-8	5	*		8.4	*	_
	1070			1935			20424			115698		118480		55.				37000			2000			40000000000000000000000000000000000000		52026		52191		3000			385	_

III		1		£~	ŧ	***	ł		jud			1	hod			ŀ			1	ŧ	ı		\$**	1	4	1	1	1		1	1	j
777	to my	1 Gur		¢->	M3	1-4	Que	Ind	lvd			Als:	G/2		6/3	**			1	673	O.	,	es 1	41		1	1-4	I i	1		} -1	\$m
1	III	111	H	1	1-4	1	E-4	Н	1			1	1		hod	Ø4			1	*	Ero.		1	1	V	tout	Ç*A	f-a	1	codi	1	gan.
1	Çva		Qua.	1				1	(ma				1		1	1			1	1	6.9		1	1	1			1		1	•	~
カーニーのカ	98-11-8 97-11-79	#-F-86	99-H-E	100 B-F	101-6-8	102-6-8	103-0-3	104-6-8	105-6-8			108-11-15	107-H-F	Ą	108-4-F	109-B-E			110-4-8	5-1-5	112-16-5	i	1 3 4	775	7707	116-6-8	117-11-3	118-F-S	1	1	13-03	5
	Salvarius (2) Fecells	Zynogenes	Fecalis.	Fecalis	Salvarius I	Lancefield C.	Salvarius 2		Lancefield A.			Feculia.	Salvarius		Fecalls	614	arin		Selvarius	Lancefield A.	duinns		Fecalis		27	Salvarius 2	Bovis	Equinus	e d	COLTABATEC	receils	Sel warefre
20			1	1	1			10				-	9		1	1			8				\$	1			-			1		Ç
*			5-	##	M			60				red.	K)		Q	19			1			ı	S	1			ı		4	चुंच चुंच		
Dactorial	Asthua			Sronchial Asthma				Allergic	Asthma	Bronchisl	Asthas	Hayfever							HT.			Vascaotor	Rhinitis	93								Actions
本代のない。自動	Out of		*Astlma	6	Non-seasonal	Pheezing	Dyspnes					F	Sneezing	Wheesing	Urticaria	Urtlearia		Occipital Headsche	Urticaria	Dyspnes			200	Ly spines	urticaria		Non-seasonal	Basal	obstruction	*ULTION TO	1m breathing *Allergic Whinitis	
3			00	22	in the			SH		44			88	45)	X			60			4	3	2			rd.		1			48
a Congression			-	*	in.			Sky		***************************************			N	Č.	e it	Shelq.			\$20E			*		100			*		1	#		5 =
\$305¢			95589	110484	1282			14223		5937			16979	00270	9	97130**	skin		72168			58767	40	5874%			117007			110465		109899

-	p										
\$	S-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A-A	H 100	t- 1 1	1 6	數學		- Por	- A	*	1 1 1 0-	
(he	E-m	to tol lot				1-1	g-l tent	food.	ajt.	p4 6. (4 6. f	. n. n +
and a	K-4	I led bot	5-4 E - B			treat	\$1000 1000	ŧ	9	1 1 1 100	4 1 1 1
Žuo	*	# 9. #		et a		Con	*	1	‡	\$ cm \$ \$:	
	S-1-37	000 500 500				2.858.4 2.858.4 3.858.	And the state of t				
Equinus	Salvarina	Option THE	Salvarius (1) Salvarius Lanceileid moisel progenes	000113	Salvarius (2)	staog	Feella	0777770		Salvarius Lenceffeld s.C., Salvarius (?) Feealls	Feedling (g)
	2		1		3	8	tracij.	3	45	1	
	in vi	***	**		A	*	www.		643	44	
Wilergie Ehinitis	Bronchiel Asthms							Osoteria.	s Sold	1,100	
			*Lozona Whoesing Welmen	Non-seasonal srecking with	Food Sen.	*Chronic bron- chills	Non-seasonal wheesing and dramos		Asthan Allergy Anaphylaxis		Lother
	50			0	42		ю		(3) (7) (4)		3 3
	(ay	**		*			Catalog Catalo	.3			See 30
	81730	611183	208.50	1.550		052.550	6				11.002.7

*	*	*	*	**	-	學本	2004	*	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	50.00	-	dist	400	1	4	fred.					藝		-		a a	*	-	639	1	*		***	0	*		489		
N.A.	-	26	May 12	·	4 . 4	n.2d	29. 5	wa k		<i>a</i> .	0 4	4.4				Single								-												-		_
	###	S-d	Wate	S. W.	\$11Q	48.9		576	Prop.	1000	good .	-	tion!	lock	Breek		4	CONT PAR	å ipm	喷彩	to off	4	•		pools of	es (541	和	B-0	i s	le of	Attend	4 •	ford	64	fresh		(pus
*	1	i i		pul.	facility .	*	EV.	64	\$m\$	post	9	Disp.	Kine !	and	-	1		1 to	中	**			4		\$ 5	7B.	The state of the s	ない最	hod	f 0	ŧ	i-i	ted	李响素	Cres	如幸		-
3		•	1	*	1	*	1	1	ing.	#	0-4	1	*	1	*	-		* 1		t	ŧ		6.		•	8	î	gard .	first.	ı	94	美心	Ç10	*	100	Ť		-
00-T-00	57 to 18 miles	147-8-8	148 F S	· 37 87 1	150 F-F	151-0-0	ST - ST - ST	1000-00 C	(1) 12 WOOT	の上降ーののけ	156-5-5	157-8-8	159-11-2	188-0-0	2000	161-0-0	1		The second	The second second	10 CO - 10 CO	£	3-0-0-1		5-1-19	100	100-1	190-E-0	1	のといいい	175 Ca.	命りない	1	S. Constitution	25-07	1		ない。
		Ġ				(7)	ď	SV.	J	4			-	and and	***	04									ŧ	0)				E-A				8-4	i in thing	k		
Constant of the constant of th	Salvorius	lancefleld	Grenoria	Fecults	seue Scale		Lencefleld		Salvarius	45.2	10) 53	10001100			5450-4	Salvarius (- Park		なべき からい ながら	0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000	からいってい	4	F 7 7 7 30 4	4		0.10	1.000 LANE	Salver ins		Calvarius (Fecelia	Zy 10% on se						一日 からののの
						1						ŧ													à						î						Ī	-
1	io.								er)			ng)	6	· 4					4						e id			19 mg			(3)							O
			-																															_		0		_
		De la constantina				- roncide.	No. of the last of	7	2000	napal discusnge	ttching eyes	Bronchitta	*	1 2 3 3 5 4 3	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR			100 Care				Creconia	CALL COR.	Manage Pools		いいとうべいなった。		Broch.	があれた。		Hay Lover	Eczenia.	Purities	19		Breakling	Speeding	The same
-	3		f			2			9			oi O	464				(1) #2)		500	40			m va		Q			1		l	NO.		60 60					禁止
9.6	北京					8			曹		,	24	96	曹			They	8	48	***		74	· ·	1	-			E-ST			fing		- Sites	in a				ņ
A 400 C	925					25255						50000	2000	10000			117612		4 4 4 4	04440			17588		116430			33.443.5			4294		19505	1177.20				建设

	\$ \$			1	\$ 6.	HWH	MENTO	he as he so we	price and and and and and	M M M M M M M M
1	1 1				* 1	1 1 14	1 1 H 1	1 to 1 to	1 1 bet 2 bet 5	# # bed # bed # #
	The state of the s	1882	183.3	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	すった日本のと	105-1-0	185-2-8 186-2-8 186-2-8	186-4-8	188-4-5 188-4-5 197-4-7 188-4-5 188-4-5	189-4-8 189-4
				13	*	*	*	*	*	* 3
Ayuogenes Feeslis		Waste Bost Kr	Fech. B	Salv rins	Larcofield		Lactin	Focults	Lactis Focalis Salvarius	Lactia Focalia Salvarius Lancesfield
	ı			ĝ						
	E-m									
	Asthan		A.S.\$7849.	はおればの					Brono Latini	Bronclinia
12022										
-	A CORDINATE OF THE CORD									- 7 - 15
	w)								au s	
	200		***	Te ₂) ma		4
37.578	116367		L'Som	To oppose the				05183	20000	ALCO DE

V. Skin Tests.

To avoid discrepancies in the correlation of the skin reactions to the species of streptococcus, it is necessary to be aware of possible sources of error which would result in confusion and inaccuracy of results.

The first source of error would be the skin reactions.

Since the skin reactions are read routinely in large numbers, the error would not be significant in the actual reading. The age of the patient may have direct influence on the skin reactivity; as the age increases there may possibly be increased predisposition of the patient for bacterial infection due to the lowered resistence. Although skin reactions are fairly well established, a manifestation of specific reaction, it is still worthy to never neglect the possibility of the presence of non-specific reaction due to age, media, or other non-specific bacterial substances. The necessity of controls and meticulous care in testing cannot be over-stressed.

The effect of age woon the skin reaction. In table III age groups are arranged in decades, and the percentum of the strains from the members of this age group are tabulated so that the reactions correspond with that particular age group. The percentum of positive reacting strains roughly seems to indicate an increased reactivity as the age advances. The delayed reaction of the vaccine which is generally accepted as indicative of bacterial allergy gradually increases with age. While the delayed reaction to the filtrate in the tabulation decreases with age, whatever the effect age may have upon the skin reactivity, it cannot be found without use of normal non-allergic controls for comparison. Since the cases are all of the same nature, the age factor may eliminate itself. It is necessary, however, to keep such factors in mind as possible sources of discrepancy and misinterpretation.

sidered the age factor in another phase. A high cosinophile count, thought to be indicative of allergic condition, has been treated in the same manner as the skin reaction. Although cosinophilis is a non-specific phenomena, many investigators support its diagnostic value. Should skin reactivity increase with advancing age, it should be possible to observe increase in cosinophile counts. The sputum cosinophile counts seem to increase alightly with age.

The age group 1-10 has 2.5 per cent cosinophiles in the sputum. The per centage increases gradually with age. At the age group 41-50 the percentage is 5.7 and gradually decreases to 5.7 per cent

Table III.

Relations of age groups and skin reactions larger than 1 cm.

	1 Vo	ecine		P	ltrate	
Age groups in decades		at of siving:	tralan		nt of et	rains
	I.R.	D.R.	B.R.	1.8.	D.R.	S.R.
1-10	none	42	59	70	none	30
1-20	12	49	39	62	25	13
1-30	nene	35	65	47	5	48
1-40	7	50	43	78	14	8
1-50	12	37	51	87	9	4
1-60	51	35	lela	83	g	9
1-70	15	45	40	95	noae	5
1-50	none	63	37	100	none	none

at 6-70 years. The blood ecsinophile at 1-10 years is 4 per cent; gradually rises to a peak at 11-20 with a count of 6.5 per cent. Then again it gradually declines to 2.7 per cent at the age group of 21-30 years. From 21-30 to 61-70 there is gradual rise to 6 per cent. Just how much significance these ecsinophile changes bear in relation to age, cannot be stated. So we must conclude until further experimental data is available that advancing age apparently affects the ecsinophile count and also that advancing age affects the type of skin reaction elicited. In this experiment the age factor will not be corrected, although it may seem desirable to do so.

Average essimphile counts in 90 patients According to ages in decades

Age Trous	Number of	Average ecsinopl	percent of iles
tested	C 4598	Blood	Sputua
1-10	10.0	4.0	2.5
II-10	4.0	6.5	2.5
21-70	8.0	2.7	2,6
SI-40	7.0	2.5	0.0
41-50	15.0	\$.0	8.7
5I-60	17.0	3.5	8.8
6I - 70	7.0	6.0	5.7
7I-80	4.0	1.5	0.0
for all ages	verage	5.0	5.8

VI. A Correlation Of Experimental Results.

trate. In skin test reactions there is exhibited an interesting phenomena in the behavior of the vaccine and the filtrate. It has been consistently observed that the largest percentum of vaccine reactions are delayed; while largest filtrate reactions are immediate. The immediate vaccine reaction may be due to the small amount of culture media injected with the vaccine. However, cases are known in which immediate reaction responded favorably to specific desensitisation which indicates that the reaction is due to specific becterial substance and not to the media.

terial allergy. The large percentage of immediate reactions to the filtrate substance may be due to the presence of peptone in the broth media and other possible substances. The delayed filtrate reaction is, however, only relative, for the percentage of the vaccine delayed reaction is much greater. The skin reactions for 200 strains were tabulated in such a manner that the relative values for the vaccine and the filtrates could be compared. Table V reveals that 3.5 percentum of the strains gave an immediate reaction to the vaccine and that 9.75 percentum gave delayed reaction; in contrast, 19 per centum of the strains gave immediate reactions to the filtrate and 3.25 percentum to the delayed reaction. The large percentum of the strains reacting immediately to the bac-

Percentage of 200 strains of streptococci which gave various types of skin reactions in the patients from whom isolated.

size of		Vaccine			Filtrate	
Reaction	Immediate Reactions	Delayed Reactions	Total	Immediate Reactions	Delayed Reactions	Total
No Reactions	21	15	36	4.3	22.5	28.5
I. cm.	2	6	8	10.	2	12
2. cm.	I	2.5	3.5	5	• 4	9
5. Ca.	.5	I	1.5	S	. 5	8.5
4. cm.	0.	.25	.25	I.	.25	1.2
Total per- centage of types of reaction.	5.5	9.75	13.25	19.	5.25	26.

terial filtrate may be due to the soluble bacterial exotoxin in the culture filtrate. The presence of peptone and other possible foreign irritants may be another possible factor. The delayed filtrate reaction would possibly be comparable to the delayed vaccine reaction if the filtrates contained equivalent amounts of bacterial substances as found in the vaccine. An interesting check could be performed by injecting the unwashed bacteria, its soluble products, and the culture media. It may be safe to anticipate that a result analogous to the sums of the percentum of the vaccine and filtrate immediate reaction, and vaccine and filtrate delayed would be present. Immediate reactions to unwashed whole bacteria and media may be 22 percentum on vaccine and 13 percentum on filtrate delayed reaction. However, such results must be experimentally and clinically confirmed or disproved.

We took this digression for the purpose of establishing some definite basis to be accepted when interpreting the skin resctions. The significance of vaccine and filtrate reactions are yet to be experimentally supported. Our purpose is to enlighten somehow the pathway toward the explanation of the true relationships of these substances and a correlation of the species of streptococcus with the various types of skin reactions.

It occurred to us that certain types or certain patterns of skin reactions may be due to some species or groups of streptococci.

A correlation of species of pyogenic group with various types of skin reactions. Table VI tabulates the various skin reaction behaviors of the species in the pyogenic group. The table reyeals that the majority of the members of any one specie gives delayed vaccine and immediate filtrate reactions. The percentage of the total reacting hemolytic species giving delayed reaction is 21 per cent, while the percentage of species giving immediate reaction is 23 percent. The group as a whole gave 5 percent immediate reaction to the vaccine and 4.25 percent to filtrate delayed reaction. As a group the hemolytic species does not show any autotanding characteristics. It is interesting to note that a direct correlation exists between table VI and V, and also that the streptococcus pyogenics of Lancefield A was the only member of the pyogenic group giving an immediate reaction to the vaccine. Moreover, it does not give any delayed skin reaction to the vaccine. Its reaction to the filtrate is characteristic of Lancefield A species. We have shown in table V that the majority of the strains gave large immediate reaction but only a negligible delayed filtrate reaction. On the contrary, the skin reactions of Lancefield A species give delayed filtrate reactions equivalent to its immediate reactions. The remaining species show no marked deviation from the other members of the group.

The types of skin reaction given by the Lancefield A may be due to several factors. The pathogenic nature of the organ-

Percentage of various types of skin reactions of the pyogenic streptococcus larger than 2 cm.

Caralan ac atmospheric	Vacci	ne	Filt	rate
Species of streptococcus	I,R.	D.R.	I.R.	u.R.
Streptococcus pyogenes Lancefield A	5	None	2.5	2,5
Streptococcus pyogenes Human *C*	None	5.	9.	1.5
Streptococcus pyogenes Animal "C"	None	None	•25	Kone
Streptococcus pyogenes Lancefield E	None	None	•25	.25
Streptococcus pyogenes Lancefield G	None	4.	10.	None
Streptococcus pyogenes Lancefield H	None	12.	None	None
Total reacting hemolytic species.	5	21.	23.	4.25

ism may contribute certain factors. Soluble exotoxins as erythrogenic toxins may be responsible. Ferhaps the antigenic makeup of the species can explain the behavior.

This peculiarity would be of value in diagnosis and treatment if firmly established and confirmed by other investigators.

Other species of the pyogenic group do not exhibit such a peculiarity; so that from the experimental data, it is possible to say that the Lancefield A gives a skin reaction characteristic and distinct from the other members of the group. Before any definite statement can be made, further experimental investigation is necessary for evaluation of the behavior.

A correlation of the species of viridans streptococcus
with skin reactions. Table VII gives the percentum of various types
of skin reactions due to the viridans and lactic streptococcus.

The salvarius of the viridens and the gamma varieties exhibit similar types of skin reactions. The percentum of salvarius of viridens variety giving immediate reactions to the vaccine is 2, while salvarius of gamma variety give 1.5. On delayed vaccine reaction viridens salvarius gave 4.5 percentum and gamma salvarius, 4. A close similarity exists in the filtrate reactions also.

Equinus also exhibits skin reactions very similar to salvarius species. The streptococcus bovis, however, seems to give a higher percentum of immediate and delayed vaccine reaction than

Percentage of various types of skin reactions of the viridans streptococcus larger than 2 cm.

	Vaccine		Filtrate	
Species of streptococcus	I.R.	D.R.	I.R.	D.R.
streptococcus salvarius viridans.	2.	4.5	10.	2.
Streptococcus Salvarius "Gamma"	1.5	4.	9.5	•7
Streptococcus Equinus Viridans.	1.6	5.	11.6	None
Streptococcus Bovis Viridans.	6.	6.	None	6.
Streptococcus Thermophilus Viridans.	None	None	None	None
Streptococcus Lactis Gamma.	25.	None	25.	Tone
Streptococcus Cremoris Gamma.	None	lone	. 25.	None
Total reacting viridans	11.	21.	31.	8.7
Total reacting Lactic	25.	None	50.	None

other members of the group. Also it was responsible for the highest percentum of delayed skin reactions with the filtrate. The filtrate preparation of streptococcus bovis did not give any immediate skin reactions. It gave the highest percentum of immediate reaction of the groups. This distinction may also be of diagnostic value, but as yet it is difficult to evaluate the significance of this behavior of the species.

Due to the fact that only one strain of lactic and cremoris were studied, it is hardly practical to discuss them such. But it was evident that they seemed to give skin reactions of a different type or pattern than the members of the other groups.

A correlation of species of enterococci with the type of skin reactions. Table VIII is a tabulation of the skin reactions for the species of the enterococcus group. In general, the reactions are not drastically different from the reactions obtained from other groups. However, there are no delayed reactions to the filtrate.

bers of the group is a delayed reaction to the vaccine and an inmediate reaction to the filtrate. This type of reaction may be
due to the fact that the filtrate of the enterococcus group does
not contain soluble bacterial substances which are responsible for
delayed filtrate skin reaction. In the case of the enterococcus
group, the bacterial substances which are responsible for the de-

Table VIII

Percentage of various types of skin reactions of the
Enterococci streptococcus larger than 2 cm.

Species of Streptococcus	Vaccine		Filtrate	
aboares or netabloocotta	I.R.	D.R.	I.R.	D.R.
Streptococcus Fecalis Enterococci	1.2	2.2	9.5	Nons
Streptococcus Liquifaciens Enterococci	None	None	None	None
Streptococcus Zymogenes Enterococci	None	5.6	10.	None
Streptococcus Durans Enterococci.	None	None	25.	Norio
Total Reacting Enterococci	1.2	5.8	44.5	None

layed skin reactions seem to be found only in the vaccine or the bacterial cell. Without further experimental support we cannot definitely be justified in stating its significance.

group of streptococci we find there are species which give a definite type of skin reaction. From the experimental data obtained it is possible to state that the species are responsible for certain types of skin reactions. At present the responsible factors of the skin reactions characteristic of certain species cannot be definitely stated. In the case of the Lancefield A we have mentioned the possible significance od crythrogenic toxins. In the case of the enterecoccus group where no delayed reaction is given by the filtrate, we had suggested the possible nature of the bacterial cell or lack of soluble bacterial substances in the filtrate to give specific delayed reaction.

A correlation of the groups of streptococci with the skin reactions. Probably the groups of the streptococci may have a certain influence on the types of skin reactions obtained from the vaccine and filtrate preparations. In table IX we have tabulated percentum of various types of skin reactions given by different groups of streptococci. We note that the pyogenic and the viridans groups gave, in general, similar types or patterns of reactions. The viridans group gave a higher percentum of ismediate reactions to the vaccine than any one group. Also the viridans

Percentage of various types of skin reactions larger than 2 cm. due to different groups of streptococcus.

Groups of Streptococcus	Vaccine		Filtrate	
	Z.A.	D.R.	I.R.	D.R.
Pyogenie Straptococcus		23	25	4.25
Viridans Streptococcus	11	22	27	8.7
Lectic Streptococcus	25	llone	50	Bone
Enterececi Streptococcus	1,2	6.8	44.5	1000

group gave the highest percentum of delayed reactions to the filtrate.

Since the lactic group was only composed of 2 strains, we will not accept its reactions as being very significant.

The enterococcus group gave a curious type of skin reaction not found in the other groups. The filtrates of the enterococci do not produce any delayed reactions and this seems to be very characteristic of the enterococcus group. The percentum of the strains giving delayed reactions to the vaccine seems to be much lower than those of other groups, i.e., pyogenic or viridens groups.

The mechanism of the various types of reactions is difficult to determine. However, many probable reasons for its behavior can be offered, but, since at present we are not concerned
with the mechanism of the reactions, little discussion has been
made regarding this.

A correlation of high sosinophile counts and the types of skin reaction. The purpose of this experiment was to determine if certain species or groups of streptococcus were responsible for any one type or pattern of skin reactions.

Several investigators have attributed the high cosinophile counts as being significant in allergic conditions when parasitic manifestations have been excluded. Since high cosinophile counts have been used as a diagnostic aid, we felt that possibly there may be a correlation between the high cosinophile counts and the

Table X
A correlation of a high eosinophiles count
and the types of skin reactions.

Types of skin reaction	Essinophile percentage			
	Blood	Sputum	total	
Vaccine positive and Filtrate positive	11	9		20
Vaccine positive and Filtrate negative	9	0		9
Vaccine negative and Filtrate positive	5	23		28
Vaccine Regative and Filtrate Regative	8	0		8

types of skin reactions, for both are thought to be manifestations of allergic conditions.

In table X an attempt is made to correlate high cosinophile counts with various types of skin reactions. Those patients having very high (11 percent) blood cosinophile counts
gave positive vaccine and positive filtrate types of reactions.
The sputum cosinophile counts of those patients with high blood
cosinophile counts also were high (9 percent). Patients having
high (23 percent) sputum cosinophile counts gave vaccine negative
and filtrate positive types of reactions. Patients having no
cputum cosinophile gave positive vaccine and filtrate-negative or
vaccine - negative and filtrate - negative types of reactions.

individuals having high cosinophile counts of the sputum give predominence of certain types of skin reactions. A high blood cosinophile count does not seem to have any influence upon the presence of cosinophiles in the sputum.

VII. DISCUSSION.

- able in grouping the streptococcus. To obtain uniform and concistent results in the classification of the streptococcus, extreme care and caution had to be exercised constantly. The various biochemical and tolerance tests faithfully differentiated most of the species. We agree with Sherman (1938) that the viridens group occusionally yields inconsistency in classification in spite of the precautions in technique and interpretations. One of the most important and conclusive tests was the Lancefield precipitin test for differentiating the species of the pyogenic group.
 - 2) We agree with Hooker and Anderson (1928) that the alpha type of Brown predominates in allergic patients. We have found that 20 percent of the strains belonged to the pyogenic group, but cannot agree with Walker and Adkinson (1919) that the pyogenic strains predominate in allergic individuals.
 - 3) Of the stool specimen of these patients, 27.5% yielded streptococcus fecalis which is known to be the predominent organism of the normal intestinal tract.

The presence of Lancefield A. pyogenic streptococcus is interesting because of its potential pathogenic property.

Streptococcus salvarius of the viridans group formed a high percentage of the strains isolated. The significance of streptococcus salvarius is difficult to evaluate as an etiological agent in allergic conditions.

- the skin reactions is stressed. We believe with Benson (1932) that false positive skin reactions are frequently interpreted as a specific reaction and that carefully arranged controls are necessary to eliminate the non-specific reactions.
- tions seems to have no appreciable significance, but we are, however, inclined to agree with Brown (1925) that skin reactivity increases with age.
- cine and filtrate may be explained by the investigations of W.

 T. Vaughen (1931), and Thomas and Towart (1932) who claimed that delayed, not immediate skin reactions are indicative of bacterial allergy. Although in this experiment we have found a large percentage of the strains giving delayed reactions to vaccine, we cannot satisfactorily explain the significance of the delayed skin reactions.
- acteristic type of skin reaction, we are inclined to believe that specied specificity cannot wholly be disregarded. The types of skin reactions given by the group A may be due to the specific nature of the species. If so, the characteristic skin reactivity would have a definite value in diagnosis.

- The viridance and the gamma variety of streptococcus salvarius gives the same type of skin reaction, however. Streptococcus bovis of the same group exhibits a distinctly characterietic type of skin reaction.
- 9) All members of the enterococcus group give similar skin reactions.
- 10) There are similarities between the types of skin reactions given by the pyogenic and the viridans groups, while the enterococcus group differs in its behavior by eliciting no delayed filtrate reaction.
- 11) Patients having high cosinophile counts gave a high incidence of certain types of skin reactions. From the experimental data this behavior may seem significant, but further investigation is desirable.

VIII. SUMMARY:

A chronological review and study of the literature pertaining to anaphylaxis and allergy has been included to strenghen the probable significance of the anaphylactic mechanism of altered reactivity in bacterial allergy.

The role of bacteria and the probable mechanism of bacterial allergy also have been chronologically reviewed and discussed.

A review of the literature pertaining to the significance of species of streptococci in allergic conditions, especially of the upper respiratory tracts and its correlation with types of skin test reactions reveals that the viridans group of streptococci, and to some extent the pyogenic group, have been quantitatively studied without regard to possible specied specificity and types of skin reactions.

The relative significance of immediate and delayed vaccine reactions in bacterial allergy was determined by a study of skin reactions to 200 strains. The study revealed predominence of <u>delayed</u> vaccine reactions and immediate filtrate reactions.

A qualitative and quantitative effect of age upon the skin test reactivity reveals a slight increase of reactivity with age.

When the species used in autogenous vaccines were classified and correlated with skin reactions, a consistent relationship is observed in all groups of streptococcus, except the
Lancefield A group of the pyogenic group and streptococcus bovis

of the viridens group. This suggests that these species give characteristic reactions which possibly are of diagnostic value.

A comparison of the skin test reactions of the members of salvarius and enterococcus groups reveals no outstanding relationship between the types of skin reaction and the species of streptococcus.

Aside from these peculiar behaviors of the group A and streptococcus bovis, the relationship of species to the types of skin test reactions reveals lack of correlation.

IX. BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Andrewes, F. W. Note on the fermentation of starch by certain haemolytic streptococci, <u>Jour. Path. Bact.</u>, XXXIII, (1930) PP. 145-152.
- Arthus, M. and Breton, M. Lesions cutanees prouites par les injections de serum de cheval ches le lapin anaphylactictise par et pour ce serum, Compt. Rend. Soc. de Biol., LV, (1903).
- Auer, J. and Lewis, P. A. The physiology of the immediate reaction of anaphylaxis in the guinea pig, <u>Jour. Exper. Med.</u>, XII, (1910), pp. 151-.
- Avery, O. T. and Tillett, W. S. Anaphylaxis with type specific carbohydrate of pneumococcus, <u>Jour. Exper. Med.</u>, KLIK, p. 251.
- Ayers, S. H. and Johnson, W. T., Jr. Ability of streptococci to survive pasturization, <u>Jour. Agr. Res.</u>, II, pp. 231-330. (1914).
- Ayers, S. H., Johnson, W. T., Jr., and Davis, B. J. The thermal death point and limiting hydrogen-ion concentration of pathogenic streptococci, <u>Jour. Inf. Dis.</u>, XXIII. (1918), pp. 290-300.
- Bades, V. and G. Preca. Untusuchungen über die Wirkung der Tuberkelbacillin und über gegenwirkende Substanzen, Zeitschr. für Hygiene, (1896), pp. 23-24, 331-379.
- Baldwin, E. R. Studies in immunity to tuberculosis. I. (a) Hyper-susceptibility or anaphylaxis. <u>Jour. of Med. Res.</u>, XVII, (1910), pp. 189-256.
- Benson, R. L. The role of bacteria in allergy, with special reference to asthma. Annals of Int. Med., VI, (1932), pp. 1137-1152.

- Besredka, A. and Steindardt. E. De l'anaphylaxie et de l'antianaphylaxie Vis-a-vis du seum de cheval, Ann. de L'Inst. Pasteur, XXI, (1907), pp. 384-391.
- Binningerus, J. N. Observation et curationum, Cent. Quinque.

 Monthelgardi, Obs., LXXXVI, (1873), p. 227.
- Blackley, C. H. Axperimental researches on the causes and nature of catarrhus aestivus (hayfever). London, 1873, VII. p. 202.
- Bostock, J. Cases of periodical affection of the eyes and chest,

 Med. Chir. Tr., London, X (1891) p. 161.
- Botallus, L. Commentariole duo, Lugduni, (1565), pp. 22-23.
- Bray, G. W. Recent Advances in Allergy. Blakiston Company, Philadelphia, 1937.
- Brown, G. T. Bacterial vaccines in asthma. Amer. Jour. Med.

 Sciences, CLXXI, (1925) pp. 94-103.
- ditions, Jour. Lab. and Clinical Med., XII, (1926) pp. 1145-1145.
- Brown, J. H. The use of blood agar for the study of streptococci.

 Rockefeller Institute for Medical Research, Monograph No. 9.

 1919.
- Carmalt-Jones, D. Treatment of bronchial asthma by vaccine. Brit.

 Hed. Jour. II. (1909) p. 1049.
- Coates, C. M. and M. S. Ersener Occurrence of ecsinophiles in the mucous membrane of the maxillary sinus in asthmatic patients, Archiv. Oto-laryngol., XI, (1930) p. 158.

- Coce, A. F. The mechanism of corpuscle and serum anaphylaxis in rabbits, Proc. Soc. Exper. Biol., XVI, (1919), p. 47.
- Coke, F. A review of 1,000 cases of asthma, Brit. Med. Jour..

 I, (1927), p. 955.
- Cooke, F. Amer. Jour. of Med. Sciences, CLXXXIII; (1932) p. 309.
- Dale, H. H., Best, C. H., Dudley, H. W., and Thorpe, W. W. V.

 The nature of the vaso-dilator constituents of certain
 tissue extracts, Jour. Physiol., 62, (1927), p. 397.
- Dale, H. H., and Hartley, P. Anaphylaxis to the separated proteins of horse serum, Bio-Chem. Jour., X, (1916) pp. 408-433.
- Dible, J. H. The enterococci and the fecal streptococci: The properties and relations, <u>Jour. Path. Bact.</u>, XXIV, (1921) pp. 3-35.
- Doerr, R. Studien uber anaphylaxie: III. Der anaphylaktische
 Immunkor per und sein Beziehungen zum eiweissantigen,

 Ztschr. f. Immunitatsforsch. u. exper. Therp., III, (1909)

 pp. 151-208.
- Doerr, R. and Russ, V. K. Studien uber anaphylaxie: IV. Mitteilung,

 Zeitschr. f. Immunitatsforsch. u. exper. Therapy, III, (1909)

 pp. 151-205.
- Dorst, S. E., and Hopphan, E. L. Bacterial asthma, Ohio State Med.

 Jour., EXXII. (1936), pp. 1065-1070.
- Duke, W. W. Allergy asthma, hayfever, urticaria, and allied manifestations of reaction. St. Louis, C. V. Mosby Co., 1926, p. 25.

- Dunbar, W. P. Hayfever, Jour. Hygiene, XXIII, p. 105.
- Edwards, S. J. Studies on bovine mastitis. VI. The nonhaemolytic streptococci of bovine mastitis and their relationship to certain saprophyticus streptococci from
 cattle, Jour. Comp. Path. Ther., XLV, (1932). pp. 43-57.
- Endus, J. F. Type specific substance distinct from specific carbohydrate in pneumococcus type I, <u>Jour. Exp. Med.</u>.

 LII, (1930), pp. 235-252.
- Feinberg, S. M. Allergy in general practice. Les and Fibiger, Philadelphia, 1934.
- Flexner, Simeon The pathologic changes caused by certain socalled toxalbumins. An experimental study. Lea Bros.
 and Co., Philadelphia, 1894, XXVII, p. 12. Also: Med.
 Hevs, LXV, p. 116.
- Friedberger, E. Kritik de Theorien uber die anaphylaxie. Zeitschr. f. Immunitatsforsch. u. exper. Ther., (original) II. (1909), p. 208.
- Gay, F. P., and Southard, E. E. Onseum anaphylaxis in guinea pig. Jour. Med. Res., XVI, (1907), pp. 143-180.
- Garner, R. L. and Tillett, W. S. Biochemical studies on the fibrinolytic activity of hemolytic streptococci. I. Isolation and characterization of fibrinolysin, <u>Jour. Exp.</u> <u>Med</u>, LX, (1934), pp. 239-254.

Biochemical studies on the

- fibrinolytic activity of streptococci. II. Nature of the reaction, Jour. Exp. Med., LX. (1934) pp. 255-267.
- Gorlasch. Zur Kenntnis der asthmatischen Sputums, Fortschr. d. Med., VII. (1889), p. 361.
- Gordan, M. E. A ready method of differentiating streptococci and some results already obtained by its application. Lancet.

 II. (1905) pp. 1400-1403.
- Hensel, S. K. Allergy in etorhinolaryngology and ophthalmology.

 A review of the recent current literature. The Laryngoscope, XLIX. (1939), pp. 323-373.
- Reidelberger, M., and O. T. Avery The soluble specific substance of pneumococcus, <u>Jour. Exp. Med.</u>, XXXVIII, (1923) pp. 73-79.
- Hodge, W. R. and Gecile Cohen Streptosocci in chronic respiratory infections, Jour. Inf. Dis., XXX, (1921), pp. 400-417.
- Hooker, S. B., and Anderson, Lillian M. Heterogenity of streptococci isolated from the sputum. With a critique on serological classification of the streptococci, <u>Jour. Immunol</u>. XVI. (1928) pp. 291-356.
- Howell, K. M. and Carrigan, M. Skin reaction with bacterial filtrates of anhemolytic and hemolytic streptococcus, <u>Jour</u>. Infect. Dis., XLII, (1928), p. 149.
- Hume, J. R. Clinical deductions from cytological findings of nasal secretions, South. Med. Jour., XXIX, (1936) p. 726.

- Hunt, H. B. Some observations on the blood ecsinophile counts in asthmatics. Jour. of Allergy. X. (1938). pp. 146-155.
- Jenner, Edward An inquiry into the causes and effects of variolag-vaccinag. Low, London, 1798.
- Koessler, Jessie Horton Studies on pollen and pollen diseases.

 I. The chemical composition of ragueed pollen, (Schneider, 1662), Jour. Biol. Chem., XXXV, No. 3, (1918).
- Koch, R. Fortsetzung der Mittheilungen über ein Heilmittel gegen Tuberculose. Deutsche Medicinische Wochenschrift.

 No. 43. (1891) pp. 101-102.
- Laidlaw, P. O. and Dudley, H. W. A specific precipitating substance from tubercle Bacillis, Brit. Jour. of Exper. Fath..

 VI. (1925), pp. 197-200.
- Lancefield, R. C. A serological differentiation of human and other groups of hemolytic streptococci, <u>Jour. Exp. Ned.</u>, LVII, (1932) pp. 571-595.
- Long, E. R. Experimental infection. Immunisation against tuberculosis, Arch. of Path. and Lab. Med., I, (1926). PP. 918-953.
- Mackensie, G. M. and Hanger, F. M. A study of hypersensitiveness to derivatives of hemolytic and non-hemolytic streptococcus.

 (Preliminary Report), Proc. Soc. Exper. Biol. and Med.,

 XXI, (1924) p. 442.
- Magendie, Francis Vorlesungen über das Blut, 1839. Also: Mor-

- ganroth, "Ehrlich Gesammelte Arbeiten", Transl., Wiley and Son, New York, 1906, pp. 332 (footnote).
- Manwaring, W. H. Der physiologische mechanismus des anaphylaktschen shocks, Zeitschr. f. Immunitatsforsch. u. exper. Ther., I (1910) p. 557.
- Wicelle, M. Contribution a l'etude du phenomen d Arthus, Ann.

 de l'Inst. Pasteur, XXI, (1907), pp. 127-137.
- Wicolle, M. and Abt. A. Ann. de L'Inst. Pasteur, XXII, (1908)
 p. 132.
- Otto, R. Das Theobold Smithsche Phaenomen, Leuthold Gedenkschrift.,
 I. (1905).
- Zur frage der serum-ueberempfindlichkeit, <u>Munchen</u>.

 Ned. Vchnschr., LIV, (1907), pp. 1665-1670.
- Piness, G. and Miller, H. Skin test in allergic
- Portier, P., and Bichet, C. Compt. Rend. de la Soc. de Biol.,
 LIV. (1902), p. 170.
- Prausnitz, C., and Kustner, H. Studien über die Ueberempfindlichkeit, Zbl. Bakt., LXXXVI, (1921) p. 160.
- Rackemann, F. M. and Colmes, A. Studies in asthma, Jour. Allergy, I, (1929) p. 2.
- Richet, C. and Hericourt Compt. Rend. de la Soc. Biol., (1898).
- Rogers. Sir Leonard Treatment of asthma by autogenous strepto-

- coccus vaccines, Brit. Med. Jour., II. (1921) p. 71.
- Rosenau, M. J. and Anderson, J. F. A new toxic action of the horse serum, Jour. Med. Res., XV. (1906-07) pp. 179-205.
- phylaxis, Jour. Med. Res., IV, (1907) pp. 552-557.
- Rozendaal, H. M., and Maytum, C. K. Vaccine treatment of asthma, Proc. Staff, Meet. Mayo Clinic, II. (1936) p. 90.
- Sabins, A. B. On presence in antipneumococcus serum of a typespecific protective antibody not neutralized by homologous
 specific soluble substance, <u>Jour. Exp. Med.</u>, LIII, (1931)
 pp. 93-107.
- Schultz, W. H. Reaction of smooth muscles of the guines pig sensitized with horse serum. <u>Jour. Pharm. and Exper.</u>

 Therap., I. (1910) p. 549.
- Sherman, J. M. Some notes on lactobacilli, Abs. Bact., V, (1921)
 p. 6.
- Sherman, J. M., and Stark, P. Streptococci which grow at high temperatures, Jour. Bact., IXII, (1931), pp. 275-285.
- Sherman, J. M. The value of the temperature limits of growth in primary grouping of the streptococci, <u>Jour. Bact.</u>.

 XXXIII. (1937) pp. 26-27.
- pp. 3-97.
- Sicard, M. H. The treatment of asthma, bronchial by vaccination,

- with reports of cases, Amer. Jour. of Med. Sciences, CLIII, (1917) pp. 856-867.
- Sterling, R. New York Med. Jour., CXI, (1920) p. 104.
- Thomas, W. S., Pamulener, L. W. and Maximin DeMouy Towart

 Autogenous vaccine in diagnoisi, with special reference to

 asthma, Arch. of Int. Med., XXXIV, (1923) pp. 85-92.
- Thomas, W. S. and Touart, M. D. The late vaccine skin reaction,

 Jour. of Allergy. IV. (1932) pp. 242-254.
- Popley, W. W. C., and Wilson, G. S. <u>Principles of bacteriology</u>
 and immunity, 2nd ed., Wood and Co., New York, 1929.
- Trant, E. F. Skin tests with bacterial products in arthritic and non-arthritic individuals, <u>Jour. of Allergy</u>, VIII. (1936) pp. 501-505.
- Van Helmont, J. B. Opera Omnia, Francofurt, 1707, pp. 346.
- Van Leewen, O. Ztschr. f. ges. exper. Med., LEMIII, (1932) p. 19.
- Vallery-Radot, P., Blamoutier, P., and Niiti, F. The role of bacteria in asthma: Indications for vaccine therapy.

 Presse Med., XLIV. (1936), p. 449.
- Vaughan, Victor Protein sensitisation and its relation to some of the infectious diseases, <u>Ztschr. f. lumunitatsforsch.</u>
 u. exper. Therap., I, (1908-90), pp. 251-262.
- Vaughan, W. T. The specifidty of bacterial allergy, Amer. Jour. Clin. Path., II. (1931) pp. 179-186.
- Von Pirquet, C., and Schick, B. Ueberrempfindlichkeit und be-

- schleunigte reaktion, <u>Munchen. Ned. Wchschr.</u>, III, (1906). pp. 66-69.
- Von Pirquet, G. Tuberkulindiagnose durch cutane Impfung.

 Berliner Kliniache Wachenschrift, No. 20. (1907)

 pp. 644-647.
- Waldbott, G. L. and Ascher, N. S. Skin reactivity of cases of asthma of short duration, <u>Jour. of Allergy</u>, VIII, (1936) pp. 246-249.
- Walker, I. C. and Adkinson, June Types of streptococci found in the sputums of bronchial asthma, <u>Jour. Med. Res</u>., XL. (1919) pp. 229-239.
- Wasserman, V. A., and Bruck, C. Experimentalle Studien Uber die Wirkung Von Tuberkelbacillen-praparaten auf den Tuberculos Erkrankten Organismus, <u>Deutsche Med. Wock.</u>

 1, (1906) pp. 1449-1454.
- Weatherall, C. and Dible, J. H. Acaculin fermentation and haemolysis by streptococci. <u>Jour. Path. Bact</u>.. XXXII, (1929) pp. 41-417.
- Weil, R. Studies in Anaphylaxis, Jour. of Med. Res., XXX, (1914)
 pp. 299-364.
- Well, H. G. The present state of the problem of anaphylaxis.

 Physiol. Rev., I, (1921), pp. 44-53.
- Wilmer, H. B., and Cobe, H. M. Vaccine therapy: The uses and misuses. A statistical bacteriologic study, <u>Jour. of Allersy</u>, IV. (1932), pp. 414-425.

- Wolff, Misner, A. Das heufieber, sein wesen und seine Behandlung.
 Munchen, 1906.
- Wood, F. M. The vaccine treatment of eczema. The urologic and cutaneous Review. XIX. (1915), pp. 680-683.
- Ylvisaker, R. S. Autogenous streptococcus vaccines in the treatment of allergic conditions, with special reference to their use in bronchial asthma, <u>Minnesota Med</u>., XXII. (1937), pp. 6-12.
- Zinsser, Hans Jour. of Exper. Med., XXXIV. (1921) p. 495.

 Significance of bacterial allergy in infections
 diseases, Bull. N. Y. Acad. Med., 2nd series, (1928)
 pp. 351-363.
- Zinsser, H. and Grinnell, F. B. Further studies on bacterial allergy. Allergic reactions to the hemolytic streptococcus.

 Jour. Immunology. X. (1925), p. 725.
- Zinsser, Hans and Parker, Julia T. Further studies on bacterial hypersusceptibility. II., Jour. of Exper. Med., XXXVII. (1922) pp. 275-302.
- Zinsser, H. and Tamiya, T. An experimental analysis of bacterial allergy, Jour. Exper. Med., XLIV, (1926) p. 753.

Manuscript of Thesis Typed by Maxine Mann

Tables by Dorothy Bradshaw